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DESCRIPTION

PAGE NOS.

Issues not dealt with by the Magistrate and the
Guijarat High Court
A. Note on prelude and buildup before

27.02.2002.

DOCUMENTS RELIED UPON

True and translated copy of State Intelligence
Bureau (SIB) message dated 07.02.2002 sent by
P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to DGP, Gujarat, State
Home Department and all police stations of

Gujarat.

True and translated copy of SIB message dated
12.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to DGP,

Uttar Pradesh.

3-4

True and typed copy of SIB message dated
12.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to DGP,

Uttar Pradesh.

True and typed copy of SIB message dated
13.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to all

CPs and SSPs in Gujarat.

7-8

True copy of statement dated 12.12.2009 made by

Ashok Narayan before the SIT, Gandhinagar.

9-13




True and typed copy of SIB message dated
16.02.2002 sent to [.B. C.I.LD Intelligence,

Lucknow, Uttar Pradesh.

14-15

True and typed copy of SIB message dated
19.02.2002 sent by S.P. Mehsana, Gujarat to DDL

DGP INT G.S. Gandhinagar.

16-17

True and translated copy of SIP message dated
20.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to DGP,

SP, Western Railway Vadodra.

18-19

10.

True and typed copy of SIB message dated
21.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to DSP,

Faizabad, Uttar Pradesh.

20-21

11.

True and translated copy of SIB message dated
21.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to all

Commissioner of Police.

22-23

12.

True and typed copy of SIB message dated
23.02.2002 sent by V.J. Solanki to DSP, Faizabad,

Uttar Pradesh.

24-25

13.

True and typed copy of SIB message dated
25.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to DCP,

Faizabad, Uttar Pradesh.

26-27

14.

True and typed copy of SIB message dated

27.02.2002 sent by Sanjiv Bhatt, DCP to DSP,

28-29




Faizabad, Uttar Pradesh.

15. | True and translated copy of article dated
30-31
24.02.2002 published in Jan Morcha newspaper.
16. | Excerpt from the Gujarat Police Manual (Chapter
_ 32-33
X) on Special Organisations, State Intelligence.
17. | Relevant excerpt from the Gujarat Government
Rules of Business, 1990 that deal with the
34-40
responsibilities of the State Government Home
Department.
18. | True copy of statement dated 27.08.2009 made by
41-46
Ashish Khetan before SIT, Gandhinagar.
19. | True copy of Tehelka transcript of Anil Patel. 47-58
20. | True copy of Tehelka transcript of Haresh Bhatt. 59-77
21. | True copy of Tehelka transcript of Dhawal Patel. 78-82
22. | Excerpts from the Naroda Patiya judgment dated
29.08.2012 authenticating the Tehelka tapes and 83-106
treating them as reliable corroborating evidence.
23. | True and correct copy of letter dated 21.04.2011
sent by Citizens for Justice and Peace to A.K. 107-121

Malhotra, SIT, Gandhinagar.







A

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF INDIA
CRIMINAL APPELLATE JURISDICTION
SPECIAL LEAVE PETITION (CRIMINAL) NO. DY. 34207 OF 2018

IN THE MATTER OF:
Zakia Ahsan Jafri & Anr. ...PETITIONERS

VERSUS

State of Gujarat & Anr. ...RESPONDENTS

KEY POINTS TO BE ARGUED

1. A complaint was filed by the Petitioner with the police wherein she had
named 62 Persons as accused as having colluded and acted in conspiracy
orchestrating communal violence in the State of Gujarat and asked for
registration of FIR. When the Police did not register the FIR, she
approached the High Court of Gujarat by way of a Writ Petition. The High
Court after hearing arguments rejected the petition but directed the
Petitioner to file a complaint under Section 156(3) of the Code of Criminal

Procedure.

2. The said order was challenged before this Hon’ble Court by the Petitioner
vide SLP (crl) No.1088 of 2006. Vide order dated April 27.2009 this Hon’ble
Court was pleased to hand over the case to the SIT appointed by this
Hon’ble Court in the other cases of Gujarat riots to “look into the matter”.

An AC was also appointed by this Hon’ble Court. SIT filed various reports
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before this Hon’ble Court. Vide judgement and order dated September 12,
2011 (reported in (2011) 12 SCC 302) this Hon’ble Court was pleased to
direct the SIT to file its final report before a Magistrate who was hearing
Crime No0.67/2002. The Court also granted liberty to the Petitioner to file
her objections in case the SIT were to file a closure report. The SIT filed a
closure report. The Petitioner filed her detailed objections to the report
(Protest Petition). The learned Magistrate after hearing the arguments
upheld the closure report. The Petitioner challenged the said order of the
Magistrate before the High Court. By the impugned order, the High Court

rejected the Petition of the Petitioner.

. The Petitioner submits that the Learned Magistrate has erred in law by
limiting the scope of the case before him. When the Closure Report
submitted by the Respondent SIT, under Section 173 (as has been
categorically stated in the Supreme Court order dated 12.09.2011 in
Criminal Appeal No.1765 of 2011), came up for perusal before the Learned
Magistrate and the same was contested by the Petitioner by filing a Protest
Petition, the Learned Magistrate was open to choose any one of the
following:
a. The Learned Magistrate when dealing with the Closure Report submitted
by the Respondent SIT, under Section 173, is convinced after

considering the “Closure/Final Report” and the Protest Petition that no
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case is made out for trial, he could have accepted the final report and
closed the proceedings.

. The Learned Magistrate could have formed an opinion that the facts, set
out in the closure report, constitute an offence, pursuant to which he
could have proceeded to take cognizance of the offence, under Section
190(1)(b) or 190(1)(c) of the Code of Criminal Procedure,
notwithstanding the contrary opinion of the Respondent SIT, expressed
in the Closure Report.

. The Learned Magistrate may have taken the view, on a consideration of
the Closure Report, that the opinion formed by the Respondent SIT is
not based on a full and complete investigation or that the investigation is
unsatisfactory, or incomplete, or that there is scope for further
investigation, in which case, the Learned Magistrate would have had
jurisdiction to give directions to the police, to conduct further
investigation. Hence the Learned Magistrate could have declined to
accept the final report and direct the police to make further investigation
as per the provisions of the Code of Criminal Procedure. (Abhinandan
Jha Vs. Dinesh Mishra, (1967) 3 SCR 668, Paragraph No. 15 and 21)

. The Learned Magistrate could have treated the Protest Petition as a
complaint and proceed to deal therewith in terms of Chapter XV of the
Code of Criminal Procedure. (Popular Muthiah Vs. State (2006) 7 SCC

296, Paragraph No.21 and 54)
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4. It is submitted that the Learned Magistrate in the order dated 26.12.2013

(Pages-174-378 of Volume | and Il of the SC Record) errs in holding that

it was not within his powers to direct further investigation or to treat the
Protest Petition as a complaint (Page No.61-63 of the Magistrate order).
The Learned Magistrate’s reliance on Paragraph No.8 and 9 of the Hon’ble
Supreme Court order dated 12.09.2011 in Criminal Appeal No0.1765 of
2011 to exclude the option or of further investigation by treating the Protest
Petition as a complaint is completely misplaced, as the said paragraphs
merely state that the Hon’ble Supreme Court having overseen the
investigation in order to ensure proper and honest performance of the
investigative agency and the Final Report of the Respondent SIT should be
placed before the Magistrate as required under section 173(2) of the Code
of Criminal Procedure. The order is further flawed in holding that it was not
open to the Learned Magistrate to order further investigation under section
173(8) of the Code of Criminal Procedure because the Supreme Court had
already included the report of the SIT within the purview of section 173(8).
In fact, Paragraph No.9 of the said order categorically states that “The said
court will deal with the matter in accordance with law relating to the trial of
the accused, named in the report/charge-sheet, including matters falling
within the ambit and scope of section 173(8) of the Code.” Thus, the order
dated 26.12.2013 shows that the proceedings before the Hon’ble Supreme
Court and the Orders passed by the Hon’ble Supreme Court particularly

orders dated 12.09.2011 and 07.02.2013, A-33, Pages 933-936 of
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Volume XIV of the SC Record) were not only not understood properly but

were misread. It is submitted that the order is perverse to the extent that
the Learned Magistrate refuses to exercise his statutory powers and limits
the scope of the proceedings before him whether to accept the closure
report of the Respondent SIT or to take cognizance based on the facts
brought on record by the Closure Report. The Petitioner further states that
the Learned Magistrate has erred by going into the veracity, truthfulness or
otherwise of the material on record, which stage comes later during the

trial. It is submitted that the Learned Magistrate was legally required to
prima facie examine the material on record to find out whether case of
reasonable suspicion to take cognizance against the accused was made
out. (S K Sinha Vs. State (2008) 2 SCC 492, Paragraph No.22)

. Further, it is the Petitioner's contention that the Magistrate’s order dated
13.12.2013 apart from the aforesaid legal deficiencies is also plagued by
major factual lacunae that necessitate the said order be set aside in the
interests of justice and the detailed Protest Petition along with exhaustive
documentary evidence be taken as a complaint and further investigation be
ordered with the issues raised therein. The Petitioners have relied on not a
single or stray documents from the Investigation Record but a whole series
of events that have been pieced together relying on these documents. The
said observations can broadly be covered under the following six heads:

a. Conspiracy

b. Abetment
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c. Hate Speech
d. Lack of fair investigation and need of further investigation
e. Statements and evidence of Sreekumar and Rahul Sharma
f. Role of Amicus Curiae

6. Conspiracy: It is the Petitioner’s case that the incidents of violence across
the State of Gujarat that followed after the unfortunate burning of the
Sabarmati Express at Godhra were encouraged and condoned and overtly
supported by the state government and the actions and omissions on part
of the state amounts to conspiracy. The conspirators can be classified in to
four groups i.e. Political Establishment, Bureaucrats, Police officers and

Private organizations/individuals.
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PART I

ISSUES NOT DEALT WITH BY THE MAGISTRATE AND THE GUJARAT

HIGH COURT

1. The following are the issues not dealt with by the Magistrate and the

Guijarat High Court.

a. First Component of Conspiracy Prelude and Build Up Before
27.2.2002: To generate and allow to be generated and deepen feeling
of hatred towards a particular community prior to the train incident
(State IB Messages and Transcripts of the Tehelka Sting Operation that
have been Validated by the CBI Pursuant to an Order by the NHRC)

b. Second Component of Conspiracy includes Inaction of Accused/
Political/Police/Bureaucrat Functionaries after Intimation of Godhra
Incident &Hate Speeches &Mob Mobilisations all over Gujarat on
27.2.2002

c. Third Component of Conspiracy after Outbreak of Violence on
27.02.2002 and Inaction/Non Response from authorities including
Police, Fire Brigade, Other Functionaries (no preventive measures, no
deployment of forces, no preventive or prompt arrests, no curfew

declared etc)
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Build Up of Communal Mobilisations by VHP Cadres Stock-Piling and
Transportation of Arms and Ammunition before the Godhra Incident on
27.2.2002; from SIB Records (State Intelligence Bureau and Tehelka
Magazine’s Sting Operation

A. Gujarat State Intelligence Bureau (SIB) has records of over two dozen
messages, from at least 12.2.2002 onwards that are indicative of serious
levels of communal mobilizations by organisations, armed with trishuls, taking
place all over Gujarat. This ingredient of the Conspiracy was outlined by the
Petitioner in her Complaint dated 8.6.2006 (Pages 21,22, 23 of Volume Il of
the SLP Record) and has been collated by the Petitioners as part of the
Protest Petition further detailed with evidence of the actual messages (Pages
372, 373, 374, 375 at Volume IV of the SLP Record). The statement of then
Additional Chief Secretary (ACS) Home, Ashok Narayan before the SIT
(12.12.2009) admits to the Home Dept being in the knowledge of this

Mobilisation(PAGE_NO. 9-13).The duties and responsibilities of the SIB &

Home Dept are laid down vide the Gujarat State Police Manual (Volume ll1),

Rule Nos 461(PAGE NO. 32-33).

B. In addition to the SIB Messages, evidence in the form of Transcripts of the
Sting Operation Conducted by Tehelka is available and was galvanised in the

Protest Petition by the Petitioner to corroborate a systematic Build-Up of
communal temperatures before 27.2.2002, the Godhra mass arson.

(Pages314- 319 in Volume IV of the SC SLP Record).The Sting Operation



was made public in October 2007, a year and four months after the Complaint
was filed. On 5.3.2008, the National Human Rights Commission (NHRC)
directed the CBI to authenticate the tapes of the Sting Operation and the CBI
has authenticated the same. The SIT Investigation Papers has the complete
record of this authentication by CBI. The Petitioners crave leave to produce a
soft copy of this 188 page document at the time of the hearing of the petition.
Finally, on 27.08.2009, the SIT recorded the statement of journalist, Ashish

Khetan who conducted the Sting Operation. (PAGE NO. 41-46)(Para 920-922

at Pages 608-609 of the Protest Petition at Volume V of the SC SLP
Record)It is also relevant to note that one of the Special Courts set up
pursuant to an Order of this Hon’ble Court on 1.5.2009 (in the Naroda Patiya
case), in its judgement dated 29.08.2012 convicting several accused
(including those on whom the Sting Operation was performed) validated the
contents of the Sting Operation and treated it as corroborative evidence. The
Petitioner is relying on the relevant parts of the judgement in the Naroda

Patiya case and the same are annexed herein.

C. According to the information revealed during the Sting Operation, before
27.2.2002 in the interview conducted in the sting operation “Operation
Kalank”, Haresh Bhatt, then BJP MLA from Godhra states that there was a
well planned conspiracy to import large quantity of ammunition from outside

Gujarat and also to ensure weapons within the State. (Para 247, pages 120-
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121 of the Protest Petition). Besides, Dhawal Jayantilal Patel, then VHP
District Convener, Sabarkantha also tells Tehelka that he is a registered
holder of dynamite which is used for quarrying in the district. He says in his
interview recorded during the Sting Operation that he along with some other
persons has been trained to make bombs. He says that they make desi
bombs that were then distributed and used in various areas (Para 251 of the
Protest Petition at pages 317-318 of Volume IV of the SC SLP Record).
Anil Patel , VHP Vibhag Pramukh, Sabarkantha also interviewed during the
sting operation states that bombs were being smuggled in from Sabarkantha
to Ahmedabad from quarries owned by VHP workers. Amish Patel also
explains how sections of the Gujarat police , for example N.D. Solanki, then
SP of Sabarkantha were full fledged supporters of the VHP. AnilPatel states
that Solanki gave him full support and enabled the quick release of Arvind
Soni, a VHP leader. Despite these leads given in the sting operation, SIT
deliberately chose to ignore this evidence and in fact raises questions about
the authenticity of the sting operation. The SIT appears to have simply,
without any judicial examination, accepted the contentions of Haresh Bhatt
given in his statement dated 29.3.2010. The accused gave an improbable
explanation that though he had mentioned of the facts contained in the
interview and he confirmed his photographs and voice, the facts were only
material given to Mr. Khetan and not based on the facts. The SIT did not
investigate the matter of arms and ammunitions being manufactured and

distributed by VHP any further.
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Similarly the SIT has accepted the statement of N.D. Solanki, former S.P. of

Sabarkantha in

2002

recorded on

17.1.2010 without

any further

interrogation.They have not gone into the details of the fax message

contained in the annexures to the affidavit filed by the former DGP, RB

Sreekumar. (Annexures | Vol.ll, Sr.No.116 of the SIT Record is the

statement recorded of Haresh Bhatt and Sr.No.70 Annexure | Vol. Il is the

statement of N.D. Solanki in the SIT Investigation papers.)

S. Facts/Details Supporting Page No. &
No Documents/Evidence References
1. | Build Up of Communal 1)Prelude & Build

Mobilisations by VHP
Cadres- Stock-Piling
and Transportation of
Arms and Ammunition
before the Godhra
Incident on 27.2.2002;
from SIB Records
(State Intelligence
Bureau), Gujarat

1) 7.2.2002 State

Intelligence Bureau
messages from PB
Upadhyaya to the DGP,

Gujarat, State Home
Department and all
Police stations of

Gujarat warning of the
communal
mobilisations especially

near temples,
recruitment of
volunteers  for  the
programmes and
aggressive posturing in
Guijarat.

(PAGE NO. 1-2)

2)12.2.2002 SIB

Message (PB
Upadhyaya) to DGP
Uttar Pradesh also
intimating that 3,000
Kar Sevaks from
Gujarat  will  reach

Up: Zakia Complaint
—Protest Petition -
Para 239 — Pg. 312
— Vol. IV of the SC
Record

2) Prelude & Build
Up: Protest Petition
- Para 426 to 438 —
Pg. 372 to 375 -
Vol. IV

3) Prelude & Build-
Up: Protest Petition
— Para 956-958 -
Pages 637 —Volume
\Y

4) Prelude & Build-
Up: Protest Petition
—Para 980 & Para
983 at Page 644-
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Ayodhya on 23.2.2002
to participate in the
Mahayagna.

(PAGE NO. 3-4)
(PAGE NO. 5-6)

3)13.2.2002 Message

from SIB records that
Praveen Togadia
announced at a press
conference that there

would be active
participation by VHP
cadres in the

Mahaygana would be

enthusiastic. Message
sent to all Police
stations in  Gujarat,
DGP and Home
department

Gandhinagar warns of
the possible

repercussions of this.

4)13.2..2002: RSS,
VHP supported by the
BJP had decided to
have Maha Yagna at
Ayodhya (Faizabad) as
a sequel to the
demolition of the Babri
Masjid  which  was
announced by Praveen
Togadia, international
general secretary of the
VHP. Further
announcement was that
construction of Ram
temple will commence

Volume V

5) Listed at Page
766 of Volume XIlI
in the SC Record&
at Annexure I
Volume | Serial Nos.
62-63 of SIT
Record/Investigation

)

6)These SIB
Messages on
Prelude & Build-Up
are available in the
SIT

Record/Investigation
(Annexure I, File Il
D-21)as Appendixes
to First Affidavit
(July 2002 of RB

Sreekumar, former
ADGP Intelligence,
Guijarat, April-
September  2002)

(D-21 in SIT Papers)
and also found in
Annexure lll, File
XXXIV, Page 2 of
the SIT Investigation
Record. (DGP to
SIT, Jan 2010;
Listed at Page 795,
Volume XIII in the
SC Record) apart
from also being
annexures to DGP
Gujarat (2005-2996)
Mahapatra’s

Affidavit at D-54 and




from 12.3.2002
onwards. Pursuant to
this announcement, the
following activities
commenced

(PAGE NO. 7-8)

5) SIB Message dated
16.2.2002
(PAGE NO. 9-13)

6) 19.2.2002 Message
from DGP INT
Gandhinagar to
Lucknow, UP by KM
Chauhan of Bajrang
Dal activists including
Prahladbhai Patel on
their way to Ayodhya
carrying Trishuls with
them

(PAGE NO. 16-17)

7)20.2.2002 DCP-INT
(Communal) PB
Upadhya SIB Message
to DGP, SP, Western
Railway Vadodara that
3,000 Kar Sevaks
would be leaving on
22.2.2002 from
Ahmedabad station.
(PAGE NO. 18-19)

8)20.2.2002 PB

Upadhyaya message to
all CPs, SSPS in
districts and Home
Secretary Gandhinagar
intimating decision of

D-139 of the SIT
Records Listed at Sr
782 & 789 Volume
Xl in the SC
Record
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VHP that Ram Mandir
would be constructed at
any cost after
12.3.2002 and
enrolment of Ram
Bhaktas would start
from all over the
country from 1.3.2002.

9)21.2.2002 SIB
Message states that
Kar Sevaks are going
to travel on a train
going to Faizabad
(Ayodhya) and
therefore in respective
areas as well as in the
railway stations it is
necessary to provide
bandobast. Take steps
to ensure that no
untoward incidents take
place. Message sent by
PB Upadhyaya (SIB-
Int-Communa) to DGP,
CPS, SPS and Home
DepartmentGandhinag
ar.

(PAGE NO. 20-21)

10)21.2.2002 SIB-
Int —Communal PB
Upadhya sends a
Message to DGP
Lucknow about the
departure of VHP and
Bajrang Dal activists
(3,000) between
22.2.2002 and 27.2002
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under the leadership of
Dilip Trivedi for re-
building the Ram
temple from 15,3,2002
(PAGE NO. 22-23)

11)23.2.2002 DSP
Faizabad and Home
secretary Gandhinagar
about 2800 VHP and
Bajrang Dal & Durga
Vahini activists under
Dilip Trivedi and Kum
Malabehn Rawal have
left Ahmedabad by
Sabarmati Express for
Ayodhya on 22.2.2002
at 2050 hours.

(PAGE NO. 24-25)

12)25.2.2002
Communal

Intelligence PB
Upadhya informing
SSPs Faizabad and
Home Secretariat
Gandhinagar that 1900
VHP and Bajrang Dal

DCP
State

activists under the
leadership of Vijay
Pramani, Hareshbhai

Bhatt and Khemrajbhai
Desai have left
Vadodara by Sabarmati
Express train for
Ayodhya on 24.2.2002
at 23.10
hours.27.2.2002
(PAGE NO. 26-27)

Tehelka Transcripts

also other
References to
Prelude of Tehelka
Transcripts:

a)Protest Petition -
Para 245 to 260 —
Page 314 to 320 —
Vol. IV of the SC
Record

b) Listed at Page
768 of Volume XIlI
of SC record, Sr
Nos 116 at
Annexure |l, Volume
II (List of Statements
in Further
Investigation)

c)Dhaval Patel's
statement Listed at
Volume XIllI, Page

777 of SC Record,
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13) 27.2.2002 Message
by Sanjiv Bhatt DCP Int
Communal to SSP
Faizabad and Home
Secretariat

Gandhinagar that 1,500
VHP, Bajrang Dal and
Durga Vahini activists
including Narendrabhai
Vyas activists have left

Ahmedabad for
participating in
Mahajhap Majayagna

by Sabarmati Express
for Ayodhya-Faizabad
at --.2.2002 at 20.40
hours

(PAGE NO. 28-29)

All these message are
part of the SIT record
and annexed hereto
as lllustrations

All these message are
part of the SIT record
and annexed hereto
as lllustrations

Sr Nos 113 at
Annexure |l, Volume
Il (List of Statements

in Further
Investigation)
e)Anil Patel’s

statement Listed at
Page 765, Volume
Xl of the SC
Record at Sr Nos
113 at Annexure I,

Volume Il (List of
Statements in
Further

Investigation)

f)JCD of Transcripts
Listed at Volume
XIII, Page 845 of the
Sc Record (Sr Nos
15, 16 & 17,
Annexure IV of the
SIT

Record/Investigation

)

Standard Operating
Procedures (SOPs) for
Police & Intelligence

Statement of Senior

Bureaucrat

B) Other Important
Evidence/References
that should have been
assessed by SIT while
looking at the Build-Up/
Prelude to Violence
from the CRA
205/2014 Record

Former
Chief

) Read
Additional
Secretary,
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ACS,Guijarat, Ashok
Narayan’s  Statement
Dated 12.12.2009

before SIT. He is a
senior Bureaucrat in the
Home Department and
admits to the Prelude

and Build Up of
Violence Before
27.2.2002 (Kar Sevaks
carrying Trishuls);
confirms receipts of SIB
Messages

(PAGE NO. 9-13)

i) Excerpt from the

Gujarat Police Manual
(Chapter X) on Special
Organisations, State
Intelligence.

(PAGE NO. 32-33)

i) Relevant Page from

the Guijarat
Government Rules of
Business, 1990 that
deals with the
Responsibilities of the
State Government
Home Department
(PAGE NO. 34-40)

Jan Morcha Report

(Newspaper published 24.02.2002

from Faizabad | Article in Jan Morcha a

Ayodhya dated | local newspaper

24.2.2002 published from

Faizabad-Ayodhya
showing the aggressive
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behaviour against
minorities of those who
had travelled from
Gujarat especially at
the Rudali police station
in UP.

(PAGE NO. 30-31)

Build Up of arms and
ammunition before the
Godhra Incident
(27.2.2002) from
Tehelka’s Sting
Operation

Transcripts of  the
Tehelka Operation
Kalank (Haresh Bhatt,
Dhaval Patel and Anil
Patel) on the Bomb
Making and Arms
Importation into Gujarat
before 27.2.2002 as
also their SIT
Statements;

1) Statement of Ashish
Khetan, then of
Tehelka before the
SIT dated
27.08.2009
(PAGE NO. 41-46)

2) Transcripts of the
Tehelka Operation
Kalank (Haresh
Bhatt, Dhaval Patel
and Anil Patel) on
the Bomb Making

and Arms
Importation into
Gujarat before
27.2.2002 as also
their SIT
Statements;

Anil Patel

References:
1. Paras 112-
113 at Page
260 of Vol lli
of the SC
SLP;
2. Paras 115,
117 at Pages
261 of Vol lli

of the SC SLP
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(PAGE NO. 47-58)

Haresh Bhatt
(PAGE NO. 59-77)

Dhawal Patel
(PAGE NO. 78-82)

2) 29.08.2012
Judgement of Special
Sessions  Court in
Naroda Patiya Case
upholding the Tehelka
Sting Operation

(PAGE NO. 83-106)

The above issues and arguments were brought to the notice of Shri. AK
Malhotra, SIT, Gandhinagar by the Citizens for Justice & Peace letter dated
21.04.2011. Additionally, the aforesaid letter also brought to the SIT’s notice

certain documents that required examination and were part of the SIT record.

(PAGE NO. 107-121)
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So b

True and translated copy of State Intelligence Bureau (SIB) message dated 07.02.2002 sent by P.B.
Upadhyaya, DCP to DGP, Gujarat, State Home Department and all police stations of Gujarat.

Spiral Annexure “G” to CRA 205/2014 has LOD, SIB Messages @ Pages 3061,

3062, 3063, 3064, 3065, 3066, 3067, 3068, 3069, 3070, 3071, 3072

[[All messages are part of the SIT Investigation récord and handed over to the
High Court]]
Reference: SIT records at Annexure IlI, File XXXIV D-176 given to the Court as A

Colly record as Annexure AColly.

Page 3061
TRANSLATION OF SIB MESSAGE

Commissioner of Police, All

Superintendent of Police, All

Komkhed Gandhinagar

Police Gandhinagar

Additional Director General of Police (Intelligence) ----- Gandhinagar
D-1/----/----228/2002

Date: 7.02.2002

State Intelligence Bureau message from PB Upadhyaya to the DGP, Gujarat, State
Home Department and all Police stations of Gujarat waming of the communal
mobilisations especially near temples, recruitment of volunteers for the programmes

and aggressive posturing in Gujarat.

Signed
PB Upadhyaya
DCP (Int-S1B, Communal) Gujarat

Gandhinagar
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True and translated copy of SIB message dated 12.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to DGP, Uttar

-

Pradesh.

Spiral Annexure “G” to CRA 205/2014 has LOD, SIB Messages (@ Pages

3061, 3062, 3063, 3064, 3065, 3066, 3067, 3068, 3069, 3070, 3071,3072

TRANSLATION OF SIB MESSAGE

3063

Date: 12.2.2002

No. D--- 252/2002

Nayak Office of the Director General of Police (Intelligence)
---- Gandhinagar Dt. 12-2-2002

To,

Chief Secretary

Secretariat Department

Gandhinagar

State Intelligence Bureau message from PB Upadhyaya to the DGP, Uttar Pradesh
SIB Message (PB Upadhyaya) to DGP Uttar Pradesh also intimating that 3,000
KarSevaks from Gujarat will reach Ayodhya on 23.2.2002 to participate in the

Mahayagna.

Signed
PB Upadhyaya
DCP (Int-SIB, Communal) Gujarat

Gandhinagar
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True and typed copy of SIB message dated 12.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to DGP, Uttar Pradesh.

Spiral Annexure “G” to CRA 205/2014 has LOD, SIB Messages @, Pages

3061, 3062, 3063, 3064, 3065, 3066, 3067, 3068, 3069, 3070, 3071, 3072

Page 3062

MESSAGE IN ENGLISH

Confidential T.P. Message
(Priority Urgent)

To D.G.P. Uttar Pradesh, Lucknow

Info Home Sec., Gandhinagar,

Police Gandhinagar

From : Addl. D.G.P. Int., G.S., Gandhinagar
0. No.: D-1/9/-HA/243/ 2002 Date: 12-2-2002
Text :

V.H.P., Gujarat announced that about 3000 Karsevak From Gujarat State are
likely to reach Ayodhya by 23-2-2002 to participate in proposed 100 days “Maha Yagna”

programme commencing with effect from 24-2-2002. ()

(P.B. Upadhyaya)
Dy. Commissioner (Communal)

For. Addl. D.G.P., Int., G.S., Gandhinagar.
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True and typed copy of SIB message dated 13.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to all CPs and SSPs in

Gujarat.

Spiral Annexure “G” to CRA 205/2014 has LOD, SIB Messages @ Pages

3061, 3062, 3063, 3064, 3065, 3066, 3067, 3068, 3069, 3070, 3071, 3072

Page 3064

MESSAGE IN ENGLISH

Confidential T.P. Message
(Priority Crash)
To A.B.Cs.P. & All Ss.P. in the State including ; Western Vadodara

Info

Home Sec., Gandhinagar,

Police Gandhinagar

All Range, I1.G.P. in the state

~--- (CT) Intelligence Dept. U.P. Lucknow

From : Addl. D.G.P. Intelligence G.S. Gandhinagar
O.No. D---HA/254/2002 Date: 13-2-2002

Text:

A message received from 1.G. (CT), Intelligence Dept., D.P., Lucknow to the learnt

that addressing the press after the meeting of prominence leaders of VHP at Chattarpur
Mandir Mehrauli, Delhi on 29-1-2002, Praveenbhai Togadia Head Sec., VHP announced that
Ram Mandir would be constructed at every cost or after March 1---2002 enrolment of Ram
Bhakt would start throughout the country at 7000 places from March 01, 2002 who would
work in contstruction of Ram Mandir ()

The following information may be sent to IG (CT) Intelligence, Dept. U.P. Lucknow,

as early as possible.()

1)

2)
3)
4)
5)
6)

Date of enrolment and number of Ram Bhakts enrolling as your district for
construction of Ram Mandir

Their proposed date of arrival in Ayodhya (Faizabad).

Mode of travel

Names of prominent leaders coming to Ayodhya

Any weapon including lathies carried by them and

Any other information related to above by quickest possible means

You are requested to furnish point wise information directly to 1.G.(CT) Intelligence, U.P.
Lucknow bearing No. 13-14/VHP/2002, dated 11-2-2002 under information to the office (.)

End.

(P.B. Upadhyaya)
Dy. Commissioner (Communal)
For. Addl. D.G.P., Int G.S. Gandhinagar

,
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Date L: 12.12.2009

Statemnent of Shri Ashok Narayan, s/o late Shri Shiv Narayan, aged about
65 years rio ‘Ghar’ Block No. 852, Sector 8, Gandhlnagar, 382 007 (Mobile
Phone No. 8727682889)

bW AW Ww

{ had completed my education in Uttar Pradesh and did double Post-
Graduation in Mathematics Physics from Allahabad University. | joined Indian
Administrative Servics in the year 1966 and was ailotied to Gujarat Cadrs. In
Gujarat I remained posted in different capacitias at diffgrent.places. In January
2002, | was posted as Additional Chief Secretary (Homa) Govermment of
Gu;arat.

| took charge of the post of Additional Chief Secretary (Home)
{hereafter mention as ACS (H)} on 01.01.2002, At that time Shri P. 8. Shah,
Additlonal Secretary (Law and Order) used to look after law and order and Shri
¥ Nityanandam, the then Secretary (Home Department) used to look after
police effairs as well as -certain Schemes sponsored by the. Cenlral
government. Shri Gordhan Zadaphia was the Minister of State (Home) and the
charge of the Cabinet Minister for Home Affairs was held by Shri Narendra
Modi, Chief Minister,

The State of Gujarat has a long history of communal riots way back to
1714. Thereafter riots had erupted in the State on many occasions during the
last three centuriss, However, post-indepsendence, major riots took place in the
State in 19689, 1985 and 1892-93. Inputs regarding the-communal sifuation in
the State had been received from the State Intelligence Bureau as well as
Intelligence Bureau; Ministry of Home Affairs, Governmant of India. This
information was sent to the concemed authorities to Initiate appropriate
preventive and remedial measures. Actionable information was analysed and
communicated to the DGP and. other field formation for further necassary
action.

- At the time when I took over as AGS (H}), the communal atmosphere in
Gujarat State was neither surcharged nor voletile prior to 27.02,2002. It may
be mentioned here that the programme of Shilanyas for Ram Mandir at
Ayodhya was announced quite a few months back to be done on 15" March
2002 and this announcement had arose some passions across the country. In
Guijarat State Intelligence outputs were available to the government about the
movement of the Karsevaks from different places in Gujarat to Ayodhya.
Keeping' in view this information all SsP/CsP were ‘alerted on 07.02.2002
about the.movements of Karsevaks. The Government had specific information
that on 16,02.2002 that Shri Prahladbhai J. Patel, President of Bajrang Dal
would |eave for Ayodhya for Maha,Yagna along with 15b-200 persons. Further
on 22.02.2002 he will depart from Mehsana raiflway statlon at 15.40 hours by

~ Delhi-Ahmedabad Mail train for Ahmedabad and on 24.02.2002 they wouid

leave Ahmedabad raliway station by Sabarmati Express trein 9165 Dn. at

20,25 hours for Ayodhya. Also there was information that-they will return on

26.02,2002 from Ayodhya at night and would reach Ahmedabad on
28.02.2002 ‘moming. The group was supposed to carry Trishuls with them.
Accordingly this message was passed on by SP Western Railway, Vadodara

-Guijarat to IG Communal Intelligencs, UP, Lucknow vide fax message dated
. 16,02.2002. However, no specific information had bearr received from the IG

Communal lntelhgance UP about the retumn joumney of Karsevaks or .from
anyorie else.

On 27. 02'2002 | had recsived a telephonic. informetion from DM
Godhre Smt. Jayant! Ravi at 08.00 hours that a rallway coach of Sabarmati
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Express train had been sat on fire by a mob of Muslims at Godhra rajlway
station. Her first reaction was that there was no casualty in the sald incident.
immediately | had given some Instructions to DM Godhra to call the fire

-tenders to extinguish the fire, to arrange for the retum journay of the stranded

passengers at Godhra railway station, to arange for medica! aid for injuredif
any and to get hold of the miscreants responsible for the said incident. |
immediately informed the Chief Secratary and Chiaf Minister about the
incident. it may be mentioned here that Shri G. Subba Rao, the then Chief
Secretary had gone abroad and Smt. Swarnakanta Varma, being the senior
most was holding the charge of Chief Secretary. The Ghief Minister had called
for an immediate meeting st about 10.30- hours. Apart from myself Shri
Gordhan Zadaphia, the then MoS (H), Shri K. Chakravarthi, the then DGP,
Shri P. C. Pende, the then CP Ahmedabad City and other staff of CM were
present in the said mesting held at the residence of the Chief Minister. Till then
no news had been received about the exact number -of casualties in this
incident ‘and the information was tickling down in tit-bits. In the mesting the
emphasis was made by the Chief Minister that the miscreants responsible for
this incident should be caught hold of and-should not ba allowed to escape.
The Chief Minister was, concemed about the number of casualties in the
incldent. No minutes of the meeting were prepared. Jheresfter the Ministers
went to Assembly and |-came to my office to prepare a note-for approval of the
Chief Minister to enable the MoS (Home) to make a statement in the
Assembly. As per the Assembly records for 27.02.2002, the Assembly started
at 43.00 hours on 27.02.2002. | had prepared a note on the basis of
information provided by the DGP and submitted it to the Chief Minister for his

. approval. Myself gone to the assembly in the afternoon but 1 had no

information that the CM or MoS (Home) would perscnally go to Godhra to take
stock of the situation. | came to know about it afterwards.

On raturn from the Assembly | held a meeting with the DGP and other
senlor officars and gave Instructions about the course of action to ba followed
to mairtain law and order in the State. At the request ¢f DGP, a request for 10
companles of Central Paramilitary Fafces was sent o the Government of india
on 27.02.2002. At our raquest Govemment of India deputed four companies of
Rapid Action Force, which were already available in Ahmedabad. Qut of these
four companies of RAF, one coy was sent to Godhra on the same day and one
each was sent to Ahmedabad,” Vadodara and Surat. Another request was
made to Government of India for CRPF but the same was not made available
on the ground that they had been deployed in Ahyodhya and North-East, It
was sometime in the evening that an Information was recelved about the
Bandh call given by the Vishwa Hindu Parishad on 28.02.2002 to protest
egainst the incident of buming of a coach in’Sabammati-Express train near
Godhra railway station resulting in to death of passengers. Immediately a
crash wireless message was sent to all Commissioners, Range IsGP, all
Dispols, 'Westpol, Vadodara under intimation to DG & IGP Gandhinagar and
DGP (Intelligence) to maintain strict vigil especially in communally sensitive
areas as wall as the places with past history of communal violence, all-
precautionary measures including adequate police’ bandobast and preventive
measures including issuance of prohibilary orders depending upon the local
situation sholld also be taken. It was further instructed that anti-socials and
hardcore communal elements bent upon to jeopardizeé communal harmony
must.bs deait with firmly. Further, when the dead-bodles of the passenger
arrive at their native places, the communa! tension: was like to rise and
therefore enhanced bandobast should be made during the funieral processions
of-the deceased end peace and communal harmony should be maintained at
any.cost. Further, all CsP, DMs and SsP were directed.to remain prasent at
their headquarters, closely moniior the sifuation and adverse development if

any, must be reported to Home Sec/Additionat Secretary (L&QO) on telephone
followed by a factual report by Fax. ' .
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S Onr27.02.2002, the Chief Minister went to ‘Godhra sometime in the
afte n safter the Assembly was adjoumnad and returned late in the night
around 22,00 hours, In the night, a law and order review mesting was called
by the Chief Minister at his residence in the wake of the Bandh call made by
the VHP. | attended this meeting held at the residenca of the Chief Minister at
about 23.00 hours. Shri K. Chakravarthi, the then DGP, Smt. Swarnakanta
Varma, acting Chief Secretary "alongwith the staff of Chief Minister were
present there. | do not recollect as to whether Shri K. Nityanandam, the then
Home Secretary, Shri Sanjeev Bhatt, the then DC (Intelligence) attended the
sald meeting or not. 1 do not racsll having seen any of the Ministers or Cabinet
colleagues of the Chief Minister in the said meeting. The DGP gave.dstailed
sequence of events of Godhra incident and possible repercussions of the
same. He also gave his requirement of-additiona! forca and informed that SRP
has been alerted and deployed wherever necessary aven: by curtailing their
normal functions. The Chief Minister was also apprised about the deployment
of RAF in the State. The Chief Minister instructed that all possible steps should
be-taken to control the possible communal riots.

Q. Did the Chief Minister sey that the people were very outreged by what

had happened at Godhra and that police appraach of balancing action
. against Hindus and Muslims would hot work anymore and also that
_ people would ebviously vent out their feelings?

A, The Chief Minister did say that the people were outraged by ths
heinous incident of Godhra and therefore effective steps must ba taken
to control the communal riots if any. | have no recollection of the other
words if any as raferred to in the question.

- No minutes of this mesting were prepared. Before going for the meeting
I had known that VHP had made a call for Gujarat bandh on 28.02.2002 but |
did not know that BJP had supported the said bandh. § came to know about it
on the next day i.e. 28.02.2002 through newspaper reports, The Chief Minister
had already taken a decision for the.transportation of dead-bodies from
Godhra to Ahmedabad and this had been conveyed to the concemed
authorities at Godhra. 1-do not recall as to whether any Cabinet mesting was
held on 27.02.2002 and 28,02.2002. On 27.02.2002, 217 arvests (137 Hindus
and 80 Muslims}) had been made by the polica.

On 28.02.2002, two- high level mestings were called by the Chief
Minister, ong in the early morning and other late in the evening. The morning
mesting was attended by acting Chief Secretary, myself, DGP and ADGP
(Intelligence). In this moming meseting, the law and order situation was
reviewed by the Chief Minister. The' matter relating to the calfing of Army was
also discussed but no decision to call Army was taken. | do not recall having
seen 8hri Ashok Bhatt and Shri |. K. Jadaja, the then-Ministers in the said
mesting. :

Q. Did the Chief Minister direct the DGP and CP that Shri Ashok Bhatt and
Shri 1. K Jadsja, the then Ministers would sit in the Control Rooms in
Ahmedabad City Control Room at Shehibaug and State Control Room
in DGP office respectively and assist/halp the polica in their operations?

A | don't recall any such instructions given by thg Chief Minister in the
said mesting.

it may be added here that Army headquarter had already been alerled
on 27.02.2002. However, on enquiry with local Army authorities it came to light
that no force was avallable in Gujarat as the same had been deployed at the
border. On 28.02,2002 at about 14.30 hours the Chief Minister made an oral
request to Union Home Minister for army deployment which was followed by a
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wiitten request made by the Home Department through Fax to Secretary
Ministry ' of Defenca, GOl for deployment of ten columns of Army at
Ahmedabad and other affacted places Immediately by alriffting them. Army
personne} were alrlited from forward areas and started amiving in the night
intervening 28.02/01.03.2002 and the last aircraft landgd at 23.00 hours on
01.03.2002. The deployment of army commenced at 11.00 hour on
01.03.2002 and nine columns were deploysd. On 28.02.2002, three
companies of Central Industrial Security Force were also made available,
Further on 01.03.2002, three companies of BSF and one .company of Border

‘Wing Home Guards loaned earlier to the Central government were made

available to us. Simultaneously, the Gujarat government had made & request
to Maharashtra, Rajasthan and Madhya Pradesh to make avellable Reserve
Police forcs. However, -only Maharashtra State responded by sparing two
companles of SRPF and they were deployed in Surat. The total deployment of
the para-military force was 37 companies including four companies of RAF but
no CRPF. ’

In the afternoon, | came to know that arson and looting had been wide
spread in the whole State especiafiy in Ahmedabad. | do not recali the exact
time but the intimation with regard to the Gulberg society incident and killing of
Shri Ahesan Jaffri, ex-MP was received by me in the eftemoon from Shri K.
Nityanandam, the then Secretary {(Home Department). | spoke to the DGP and
asked him as to whether steps wera being taken according to the Rlot Control
Schems, to which he replied that appropriate instructions had been given to

" the concarned officers, It would not be out of place to mention here that | had

spoken to .the CP Ahmedabad earlier and discussed about imposition of
curfew in Ahmedabad City but the Commissioner was of the view thal it would
be difficult to enforce the curfew in view of the Iinsufficient polica force
available with them. On 28.02.2002 afternoon Shri Gordhan Zadaphia came to
my room. { offerad him a cup of tea. While he was sitting in my office, one Shri
Usmanbhai Devdiwala, MLA from Ahmedabad peeped intc my room and |
repeatedly asked him to come over but he hesitated and lsft by saying that he
would comp some other time, Subsequently | heard. that Shrl Usman
Devdiwala, MLA had alleged at some stage that Shri Gordhan Zadaphia was

sitting in my office and controlling the police operations, On the contrary Shri

Gordhan Zadaphia had expressed his concem about the ongeing riots in
Gujarat.and wanted the same to be controlled immediately.

On 28.02.2002 gflemoon a press conference was held by the Chief
Minister in Shahibaug Annaxe sometime batween 15.00 hours to 17.30 hours.
( had attended the. press conference along with police officers including DGP
and CP Ahmedabad. Shri K Nityanendam, Secretary (Home Department) was
also there, 'In nuishell the Chief Ministor informed the press that he had
already requested the Central government to deploy the army and also

appsaled .through them to both the communities to maintain peace and
harmony.

- On 28.02.2002 night, ancther law and order revisw meeting was held
by the Chief Minlster, which was attended to by DGP, CP Ahmedabad, ADGP
(Int), myself and personal staff of Chief Minister. | do not recollect as to who
others participated in the said meeting. ADGP (Int) gave the facts and figures
of the various riot events in the. said meeting, DGP expressed his concern and
asked as to when the Army and CPMF would armive. In this meeting, the
massacres which took place in Gulberg Soclety and Naroda Patiya were also
discussed. The first point which was discussed in the said meeting was that ail
the culprits responsible for these incidents should be brought to book and
other issue which was discussed was how to contro} thesa ricts. The CP was
also of the view that with the limited strength of police forcs it was not possible
to contro! these riots and that the Army/CPMF should arrive at the earliest. It
was decided to make further attempt to secure additional forces as well as
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army. Shri Narendre..l\llodi, CM spoke to Shri George Fernandses, the then
Defenca Minister, who paersonally arrived at Ahmedabad on 01.03.2002 to take

-stock of the situation. However, the Army started amiving in the night

intervening 28,02.2002/01.03.2002.

On 28.02.2002, the police had .fired more than 4,000 rounds. Uptil
08.03.2002 police had fired §,141 rounds, 7,137 tear gas shells and 89 people
had died due to polica firing. The police had arrested 4,128 persons. [t may be
mentioned here that. the major incidents could ba contmlled within 72 hours
and subsequently with effect from 08.03.2002 to 15.03.1002, the casualties
were between 1 and 3. On 19.03.2002, thé death toll was 11 followed by a
decllnmg trend till 29.03,2002. On 30. 03 2002, eight people wara killed with
nine killings on 03.04.2002, Thereafler there was a decline in death toll but the
atmosphere was vitiated, Uptil 20.03.2002, 120 persons (66 Hindus and 54
Muslims) died in police firing. However, no incidént had bean reported after
10,05.2002, It may be mentioned here that uptil 24.06,2002, 19,603 parsons
were arested by the police in 4,184 cases registersd by them. However, the
polica had rascued around 10,000 parsons during the rots.

To be continued on 13.1 2.2009
Read over and admitted to be comsact.
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Before me

Maembesr, SIT,
Gandhinagar
Typed by me
' 13 N304

(A K. PARMAR)
PSl, SIT, Gandhinagar
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+ True and typed copy of SIB message dated 16.02.2002 sent to I.B. C.1.D Intelligence, Lucknow, Uttar

Pradesh.

SPIRAL “J” PAGES 3975

SIT RECORD: ANNEXURE lil FILE II, D-21, FIRST AFFIDAVIT OF R.B. SREEKUMAR

Appendix — 11

Fax Message

To : 1.G. C.I. Intelligence U.P. Lucknow

Info Addl. D.G.P. Int. G.S. Gandhinagar

From : Westpol Baroda (Gujarat)

No. : B-10/21B/175/2002 Date : 16-2-2002
Text:

This is an additional information in continuation of this office Fax-Message No. B-
10/LIB/VHP/168/2002 dated 15-2-2002 regarding to furnish the information in connection with
the construction of Ram Mandir / Maha-Yagna at Ayodhya.

The point wise information about the above subject are furnished under
1) 150-200 peoples of Bajrang Dal with leave for Ayodhya for Maha-Yagna
2) On ."22-2-2002, they will departure from Mehsana railway station at 15/40 hours by Delhi-
A'bad Mail Train for A’bad and on 25-2-2002, they will leave from A’bad Railway Station by
Sabarmati Express Train No. 9165 DN at 20:25 hours for Ayodhya and will return back on 26-2-
2002 from Ayodhya at right for A’bad and will reach A’bad on 28-2-2002. Morning.

3) By Sabarmati Express Train No. 9165 on 24-2-2002
4) Prominent Leader is Prahladbhai |.Patel, President of Bajrang DAI.

5) They will carry ‘Trishul’ with them.
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True and typed copy of SIB message dated 19.02.2002 sent by S.P. Mehsana, Gujarat to DDL DGP INT G.S.

Gandhinagar.
SPIRAL “J” PAGES 3976

SIT RECORD: ANNEXURE Ill FILE II, D-21, FIRST AFFIDAVIT OF R.B. SREEKUMAR

APPENDIX-12

----- 10134 19-Feb-02 15:55 msg 0134
Op pr.

Copy to:

OPr4

GNR DE MSA IMMDT IT T1 | SPW) NR 09 SR 73

To : DDL DGP INT G.S. Gandhinagar

Info I.G.C.L (Int) Lucknow U.P.

From : S.P. Mehsana (Guj)

No LIB /---/VHP/271/02 19-2-02

Ref Your TP message no. D-1/9/HA/259/02 Dated 13-2-02 regarding start

construction of Ram Mandir Marc-01/2002 150 Bhakts carried Trishu! with them under the

leadership of Shri Prahaladbhai Jayantibhai Patel, President

Bagranodal of Mehsana Distt. Will go to Ahmedabad on 22-2-02 and after leave by train to
participate in Ram Mandir construction at Ayodhya, Faizabad (.) their arrival at Ayodhya on date
24-2-2002.

NIL/1410

Sent by K.M. Chauhan at 1555 tks pl
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True and translated copy of SIP message dated 20.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to DGP, SP, Western Railway Vadodra.

TRANSLATION

Spiral Annexure “G” to CRA 205/2014 has LOD, SIB Messages @ Pages 3061,

3062, 3063, 3064, 3065, 3066, 3067, 3068, 3069, 3070, 3071, 3072

TRANSLATION OF SIB MESSAGE

3065

Date: 20.2.2002
Fax Message
Respect : Superintendent of Police Western Railway Vadodara
------ : Kaamsek Gandhinagar

Police Gandhinagar
Sender : Additional Director General of Police G.R. Gandhinagar
Number : D/1/-----1295/2002 Date: 20-2-2002

PB Upadhyaya message to all CPs, SSPS in districts and Home Secretary Gandhinagar
intimating decision of VHP that Ram Mandir would be constructed at any cost after
12.3.2002 and enrolment of Ram Bhaktas would start from all over the country from
1.3.2002.

Signed
PB Upadhyaya
DCP (Int-SIB, Communal) Gujarat

Gandhinagar
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True and typed copy of SIB message dated 21.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to DSP, Faizabad, Uttar

Pradesh.
Spiral Annexure “G” to CRA 205/2014 has LOD, SIB Messages @ Pages

3061, 3062, 3063, 3064, 3065, 3066, 3067, 3068, 3069, 3070, 3071, 3072

Page 3066
MESSAGE IN ENGLISH

Confidential Fax Message
(Priority — Urgent)
To D.S.P., Faizabad, U.P. (Fax No. 05278-2421 / -/ 2209)
Info : LG, (CT) Int. Deptt., U.P., Lucknow (Fax No. 0522-206215)
Home Sec., Gandhinagar

Police Gandhinagar

From Addl. D.G.P., Intelligence, G.S. Gandhinagar
O.No. : D-1/9-HA/296/2002 Dated: 21-2-2002
Text:

Vishwa Hindu Parishad is to organise re-construction of Ram Mandir at Ayodhya
with client from 15.3.2002 () About 3000 VHP and Bajrang Dal activists under the
leadership of Shri Dilip Trivedi (VHP Gujarat Pradesh) from Guijarat State are leaving
Gujarat by Train for Ayodhya from 22.2.2002 to 27.2.2002 0
Date: 21.2.2002

Signed
PB Upadhyaya
DCP (Int-SIB, Communal) Gujarat

Gandhinagar
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¢ True and translated copy of SIB message dated 21.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to all

Commissioner of Police.

TRANSLATION

Spiral Annexure “G” to CRA 205/2014 has LOD, SIB Messages @ Pages

3061, 3062, 3063, 3064, 3065, 3066, 3067, 3068, 3069, 3070, 3071, 3072

TRNSLATION OF SIB MESSAGE

306

eerm—

Date: 21.2.2002

Fax-Message

—_— Commissioner of Police, All
Superintendent of Police, All Western Vadodara
Kaamsek Gandhinagar
Police Gandhinagar
Addl. D.G.P. Intelligence G.S. Gandhinagar

D-1/---/300/2002. Date: 21-2-2002

SiB-int —-Communal PB Upadhya sends a Message to DGP Lucknow about the
departure of VHP and Bajrang Dal activists (3,000) between 22.2.2002 and 27.2002

under the leadership of DilipTrivedi for re-building the Ram temple from 15,3,2002

Signed
PB Upadhyaya
DCP (Int-SIB, Communal) Gujarat

Gandhinagar
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True and typed copy of SIB message dated 23.02.2002 sent by V.J. Solanki to DSP, Faizabad, Uttar Pradesh.

.
Spiral Annexure “G” to CRA 205/2014 has LOD. SIB Messages @ Pages

3061, 3062, 3063, 3064, 3065, 3066, 3067, 3068, 3069, 3070, 3071, 3072

Page 3068
MESSAGE IN ENGLISH

Fax Message
(Priority — Urgent)
To D.S.P., Faizabad, U.P. (Fax No. 05278-24215/22209)
Info L.G., (CT) Int. Deptt. U.P., Lucknow (Fax No. 0522-2062(s)
Home Sec., Gandhinagar

Police Gandhinagar

From : Addl. D.G.P., Intelligence C,8, Gandhinagar
O.No. : D-1/9-HA/312/2002 Date: 23-2-2002
Text:

Vishwa Hindu Parishad is to organise re-construction of Ram Mandir at Ayodhya
with effect from 15-3-2002 () About 2800 VHP and Bajrang Dal activists (2400 Male and
400 Female) under the Ieadership of Shri Dilip Trivedi (General Secretary, VHP Gujarat
Pradesh) and Kumari Malaben Raval (President Durga Vahini, Gujarat) from Gujarat
State have left Ahmedabad (Gujarat) by Sabarmati Express, Train No. 9165 for
Ayodhya on 22-2-2002 at 20:50 hrs. ()

(V.J. Solanki) P.I. ‘C’

For Addl. D.G.P. Int., G.S. Gandhinagar
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True and typed copy of SIB message dated 25.02.2002 sent by P.B. Upadhyaya, DCP to DCP, Faizabad, Uttar

= Pradesh.
Spiral Annexure “G” to CRA 205/2014 has LOD, SIB Messages (@ Pages

3061, 3062, 3063, 3064, 3065, 3066, 3067, 3068, 3069, 3070, 3071, 3072

Page 3069

MESSAGE IN ENGLISH

Fax Message
(Priority — Urgent)
To D.S.P., Faizabad, U.P. (Fax No. 05278-24215 / 22209)
Info L.G., (CT) Int. Dept. U.P., Lucknow (Fax No. 0522-206235)
Home Sec., Gandhinagar

Police Gandhinagar

From : Addl. D.G.P., Intelligence, G.S., Gandhinagar
O.No. : D-1/9-HA/316/2002 Date: 25-2-2002
Text:

Vishwa Hindu Parishad is to organise re-construction of Ram Mandir at Ayodhya
with effect from 15-3-2002 (). In this connection, about 1900 VHP and Bajrang Dal
activists under the leadership of S/Shri Vijay Pranamu (Secretary, VHP), Hareshbhai
Bhatt (President Bajrang Dal Gujarat), Khemrajbhai Desai (President VHP South Zone)
from Vadodara and South Gujarat have left Vadodara by Sabarmati Express train for
Ayodhya on 24-2-2002 at 23:20 hrs ()

(P.B. Upadhyaya)
Dy. Commissioner (Communal)

For. Addl. D.G.P., Int., G.S. Gandhinagar
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. True and typed copy of SIB message dated 27.02.2002 sent by Sanjiv Bhatt, DCP to DSP Faizabad, Uttar

2 h.
g'i?f'ffl Annexure “G” to CRA 205/2014 has LOD, SIB Messages (@ Pages

3061, 3062, 3063, 3064, 3065, 3066, 3067, 3068, 3069, 3070, 3071, 3072

Page 3070

MESSAGE IN ENGLISH

Fax Message

(Priority — Urgent)
To D.S.P., Faizabad, U.P. (Fax No. 0522-206265)
Home Sec., Gandhinagar,

Police Gandhinagar

From : Addl. D.G.P., intelligence G.S. Gandhinagar
O.No. : D-1/9-HA/327,/2002 Date ; 27-2-2002
Text:

Vishwa Hindu Parishad is to organise re-construction of Ram Mandir at Ayodhya
with effect from 15-3-2002 () In this connection, about 1500 VHP and Bajrang Dal and
Durga Vahini activists (1200-Male, 300 Female) under the leadership of Shri
Narendrabhai Vyas (President, VHP Saurashtra Zone), from South Zone have left
Ahmedabad participating in “Ram Jap Maha Yagna” by Sabarmati Express for Ayodhya
on —2-2002 at 20:40 hrs ()

(Sanjiv Bhatt)
Dy. Commissioner (Communal)

For. Addl. D.G.P. Int., G.S. Gandhinagar

All messages the above messages are part of the SIT record @ Annexure IlI, File

XXXIV D-176 given to the Court as A Colly.
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True and translated copy of article dated 24.02.2002 published in Jan Morcha newspaper

Bajrang Dal activists, thrashed Muslims, forced them to chant slogan of Jai Shree
Ram

Bhelsar, (Faizabad), 24 February 2002

This morning Bajrang Dal activists armed with Trishul, attacked several unarmed Muslim
passengers, including Burkha clad women, and innocent children. They also targeted the
people standing on the platform, and forced them to chant Jai Shree Ram slogans. Some of
them saved themselves by pretending to be Hindus.

According to the eye witnesses, about two thousand Bajrang Dal activists, armed with
Trishul, in Sabarmati Express Train coming from Lucknow, started violent ruckus at
Dariyabad railway station, they identified and seriously injured Muslim passengers by
attacking them with metal rods and stabbed them with Trishuls. They did not even spare
the women and children. They snatched the women’s Burkha. They bashed them up with
metal rods and dragged them by their arms. They attacked the people on the railway
platforms too.

This continued from Daryabad to Rudauli station. One of the witnesses said that a man who
resisted was thrown on the railway track between the Patranga and Roja Gaon stations. The
train reached Rudauli by 8 am. As soon as the train halted, many injured women drenched
in blood jumped out of the train. Simultaneously the Bajrang Dal activists also came out and
started targeting Muslims who were there on the platform.

Ata Muhammad of Takiya-Khairanpur, was waiting for the train to go to Allahabad, he was
also brutally beaten up, many others were forced to chant Jai Shree Ram slogans. Some of
them saved their lives by pretending to be Hindus. When 50 year old Md. Ansar, who stays
close to the station, came out of his house, his beard was pulled & plucked out, then he was
stabbed with Trishul and he was badly injured.

There was also a man from the Rudauli Thana area, he was attacked with rods and was left
unconscious. People in the nearby areas informed the police on the phone.

The Bhelsar Police Chowki in-charge reached the spot with police force but by that time the
train had left. The injured people were sent to the hospital. Due to the absence of Thana
Prabhari (SHO) no report could be registered. The injured people don’t even know why they
were attacked. The rumour mongering is on, people are scared. All the local Hindu-Muslim
intellects and civil society members have condemned this incidence and called it shameful.

Muslim religious leaders have called for restrains and appealed people to maintain peace.
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Excerpt from the Gujarat Police Manual (Chapter X) on Special Organisations, State Intelligence
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Relevant excerpt from the Gujarat Government Rules of Business, 1990 that deal with the responsibilities of the State

Government Home Department.

GOVERNMENT OF GUJARAT

THE GUJARAT GOVERNMENT RULES
OF BUSINESS, 1990

(As amended up to 23rd November, 2010)
(Made under Article 166 of Constitution of India)

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT
SACHIVALAYA, GANDHINAGAR
2010
4. The business of the Government shall be transacted in the departments specified in the
first Schedule and shall be classified and distributed amongst those departments as laid
down therein:

9. All cases referred to in the Second Schedule shall -

1) be brought before the Council by the direction of the Governor under clause (c) of
article 167;

@) be brought by the direction of the Chief Minister or the Minister-in-charge of the
case with the consent of the Chief Minister, before the Council or before such
ministers or Minister of State as the Chief Minister directs:

Provided that no case in regard to which the Finance Department is
required to be consulted under rule 11 shall, save in exceptional circumstances
under the directions of the Chief Minister, be discussed by the Council or by such
Ministers or Ministers of State as aforesaid unless the Finance Minister has had
opportunity for its consideration.

10. (1)  Without prejudice to the provision of rule 7, the Minister in-charge of a
department shall be primarily responsible for the disposal of the Business
appertaining to the Department.

FIRST SCHEDULE
(see rule 4)
In this Schedule references to List I, List 1l and List 111 shall be construed as reference to
the respective lists in the Seventh Schedule to the Constitution.

PART-1

Sr. No. Name of the Department Abbreviation
1 2 3
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1 General Administration Department GAD
2 Agriculture &Co-operation Department A &CD
3 Education Department ED
4 Finance Department FD
5 Food, Civil Supplies &Consumers' Affairs Department FCS & CAD
6 Forest &Environment Department F&ED
7 Health &Family Welfare Department H & FWD
8 Home Department HD
9 Industries & Mines Department | & MD
10 Information &Broadcasting Department I 7BD
11 Labour & Employment Department L & ED
12 Legal Department LD
13 Narmada, Water Resources, Water Supply and Kalpsar Department | NWRWS & KD
14 Panchayat, Rural Housing & Rural Development Department PRH & RDD
15 Revenue Department RD
16 Road & Building Department R & BD
17 Social Justice & Empowerment Department SJ&ED
18 Urban Development &Urban Housing Department UD & UHD
19 Sports, Youth & Cultural Activities Department SY & CAD
20 Energy and Petro-Chemicals Department E & PCD
21 Legislative and Parliamentary Affairs Department L & PAD
22 Ports and Transport Department P&TD
(8) Subjects allotted to the Home Department:
Removal from one State to another State of prisoners, accused persons and persons
subject to preventive detention for reasons connected with the security of the State, the
maintenance of public orders of the maintenance of supplies and services essential to the
community.
2. Naval, Military and Air Forces and any other armed forces, the Union, Central Bureau of
Intelligence and Investigation including:-
() Internal Security and defence of India (Naval, Military or Air) matters bearing on
internal security (Including the use of Naval Military or Air Forces and aid of
Civil Powers);
(i) Auxiliary and Indian Territorial Forces.
(iii)  Promotion of Officers of the Indian Land forces.
(iv)  Recruitment and transport of troops;
(v) Other miscellaneous military matters.
3. Confidential and Secret codes;
4, Public order including:-




10.

11.

12.

13.

(i)

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

V)
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Preventive detention for reasons connected with the security of State maintenance
of public order or the conservation of foreign exchange or prevention of
smuggling activities or prevention of illicit traffic in narcotic drugs and
psychotropic substances or defence or foreign affairs or security of Indian
persons, subject to such detention (See entry No.2 under the FCS &CAD).

All offences against the State including those under prevention of Seditious
Meeting Act, 1911 and Criminal Law Amendment Act, 1908.

Political intelligence;

Political and communal agitations and subversive movement and preventive
measures to deal with them;

Unusual occurrences, inter communal relations, riotous disturbances.

Wireless and other like forms of communications (See also entry No.34 under GAD and
entry No.5 under R & BD).

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

All matters pertaining to appointments, posting, transfers, promotions, conduct,
grant of leave, pension, etc. in respect of officers of Indian Police Service;

all matters pertaining to appointments, posting, transfers, promotions, conduct,
grant of leave, pension, etc. in respect of all Gazetted Officers (other than those
covered under entry No.45 of the subject allotted to the GAD) and non-Gazetted
Government servants under the administration control of the Department.

all matters pertaining to grant of pension in respect of class-1 & Il Officers of the
Secretariat Cadre under the Administrative Control of the Department.

all matters pertaining to grant of leave and to impose penalties as specified at
serial numbers 1 and 2 of rule 6 of the Gujarat Civil Services (Discipline and
Appeal) rules, 1971 and to institute disciplinary proceedings for imposing
penalties as specified at serial numbers 3 to 8 of the said rule 6 in respect of
Class-11 officers of the secretariat cadre under the administrative control of the
Department (See also entry No.45 under GAD).

Anti-corruption.

Vigilance Commission.

National Integration.

Withdrawal of prosecution.

Home Guards Organisations.



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

217.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.
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State Reserve Police.

Civil Defence.

Gram Rakhsak Dal.

Police including Railway and Village Police.

Bombay Lotteries (Control and Tax) and Prize Competition (Tax) Act, 1958.
Betting and gambling.

Offences against, laws which respect to any of the matters in the list.
Prevention of cruelty to animals.

Vagrancy, nomadic and migratory tribes.

General work relating to the administration of the Cattle Tress pass Act, 1871.
A protection of crops from wild animals and human sources.

Explosives.

Exhumation, missing persons, estate deceased persons.

Arms, fire arms and ammunition.

Bills and Acts other than those pertaining to subjects dealt within other department.
Field firing and artillery practise.

Resettlement of ex-serviceman.

Prisons and Persons detained therein, arrangement with other states for the use of prison,
deportation of ex-military convicts.

Criminal Lunatics.
Process serving on convicts and lunatics.
Sainik fund and other civil activities relating to defence.

Deleted (Date03/09/2005)
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36. Deleted. (Date03/09/2005)

36-A. Prohibition on selling, letting on hiring of obscene advertisements, photographs and
posters for the purpose of publication or exhibition. (Date28/10/2004)

37. Works lands and buildings vested in or in possession of Government purposes of the
State and assigned to the Home Department.

38. Inquiries and statistics for the purposes of any of the matters in this list.
39. Fees in respect of any of the matters in this list but not including fees taken in any court.

(12)  Subjects allotted to the Legal Department.
1 Deleted. (Date08/02/1993)

2 Deleted. (Date08/02/1993)

3 Deleted. (Date08/02/1993)

4. (i to xi) Deleted. (Date08/02/1993)

5 Deleted. (Date08/02/1993)

6 Deleted. (Date08/02/1993)

7. Criminal Law, including all matters included in the Indian Penal Code at the
commencement of the Constitution but excluding offences against laws with respect to
any of the matters specified in List | or Il and excluding the use of Naval, Military and
Air force and any other armed forces of the Union in aid of the Civil Power.

8. Criminal procedure, including all matters included in the Code of Criminal procedure
1973 but excluding (i) appointment of Executive Magistrates, Special Magistrates, Sub
Divisional Magistrates and District Magistrates under the said code and (ii) conferment of
special powers on them, and withdrawal of such powers from them, under the said code
(See also entry No. 5 under HD).

9. Civil Procedure, including all matters included in the Code of Civil Procedure at the date
of the commencement of constitution, the recovery in a State, of claims in respect of
taxes and other public demands, including arrears of land revenue and sums recoverable
as such arising outside the State.

10. Evidence and oaths, recognition of law, public acts and records and judicial proceedings,
State Law Reports.

11. Marriage and divorce, infants and minors, adaptation (except) Registration of Marriage
and the Child Marriage Restraint Act, 1929 (See also entry No. 1 under H and FWD and
entry No. 12B under SJ & ED). (Date21/03/1997, Date25/06/1997)

12.  Wills, intestacy and successions save as regards agricultural lands, joint family and
partition, all matters in respect of which parties in judicial proceedings were immediately
before the commencement of the Constitution subject to their personal law.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

19-A.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.
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Contract, including partnerships, agency contracts of carriage and other special forms and
contract but not including contracts relating to agricultural land.

Acrbitration.
Bankruptcy and insolvency, Administrator General and official Trustee.
Actionable wrongs.

Examination of clauses of all bills relating to imposition by legislation of punishments by
the fine, penalty or imprisonment, for enforcing any law of the State.-

Admiralty jurisdiction.

Legal profession.

National Law University (Date23/04/2003)

The Administration of Justice, constitution and organisation of all courts except the
Supreme Court and the High Court, Officers and servants of the High Courts, fees taken
in all Courts except Supreme Courts (See also entries Nos. 13 and 20 under the RD).
Jurisdiction and powers of all courts except the Supreme Court.

Pauper costs.

Appointments, remuneration etc., of Public Prosecution, including Assistant Public
Prosecutors, and the organisation of Directorate of Public Prosecution with all its

affiliated Functions (Date28/10/2004)

Conduct of Civil Litigation to which Government is a Party and appointment and
remuneration of State Law Officers, Government Pleaders and Special counsels.

Writing off of any decretal dues.
Appeals against acquittals and applications to enhance sentences.
Suits and summons including notices and execution of decrees etc.

Administration of the Societies, Registration Act, 1860 Literary, Scientific, religious and
other societies and associations. (Date14/06/1999, Date03/09/2005)

Administration of Notaries Act, 1952.



30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

40

Trusts and trustees, administration of the Bombay Public Trust Act and the Charitable
Endowment Act, Charities Charitable and religious institutions and endowments
(including wakfs). (Date14/06/1999, Date03/09/2005)

Administration for the Commissions of Inquiry Act, 1952 and matters arising there form.
Deleted. (Date08/02/1993)

Q) All matters pertaining to appointments, posting, transfers, promotions, conduct,
grant of leave, pensions etc. in respect of all gazetted officers (other than those
covered under entry No. 45 in the subjects allotted to the GAD) and non-Gazetted
Government servants under the administrative control of the Department;

(i) all matters pertaining to grant of pension in respect of Class-1 and Il Officers of
the Secretariat Cadre under the administrative control of the department; and

(iii)  all matters pertaining to grant of leave and to impose penalties as specified at
serial numbers-1 and 2 of the rule 6 of the Gujarat Civil Service (Discipline and
Appeal) Rules, 1971 and to institute disciplinary proceedings or imposing
penalties as specified at serial numbers 3. to 8 of the said rule 6 in respect of
Class-U Officers of the Secretariat cadre under the administrative control of the
Department (See also entry No. 45 under GAD).

Works, lands and building vested in or in the possession of Government for purposes of
the State and assigned to the Legal Department.

Inquiries and statistics for the purpose of any of the matters in this list.

Fees in respect of any of the matters in this list.
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True copy of statement dated 27.08.2009 made by Ashish Khetan before SIT, Gandhinagar.

Date: 27-08-2009

Statement of Shri Ashish Khetan, s/o Shri Sureshchandra Khetan
aged about 33 years, r/o 601, ‘D' wing, Vintage Co-Operative So.,
1.C. Colony. Borivili(w), Mumbai-400103.(Mob.No.08819032431)
Permanent Address: R/621, Rasulpur, Distt. Barabanki, U.P,

1 am a post graduate in Commerce and had specilised in Human
Resources & industrial Relations. | can speak read and write English and Hindi
language. | had worked as a Speclal Curraspondence in ‘Tehelka' during the
period December 2006 to September 2007. in October 2007. | joined ‘Aaj Tak'
TV news channel and | am still continuing with them.

While | was working with Tehelka, | was posted at Mumbai but remained
direcily in contact with the New Delhi main office situated a!l ‘M’ Block market,
Greater Kailash —I1, New Delhi. At present | am employed with the Aaj Tak news
channe! and posted at the office of Aaj Tak, situated at Chakala, Andheri(E).
Mumbai. The head offica of Aa] Tak is situated at Videocon Tower,
Jhandewalan, New Delhi.

In the second week of May 2007, while | was working with Tehelka, Shri
Tarun Tejpal, Editor in Chief called me on phone ard asked me o conduct an
inquiry into an incident related to the M.S. University, VVadodara where the
workers of Vishwa Hindu Parishad had conducted various acts of vandalism and
had manhand!ed some of the students and a prolessor over a painting prepared
by some student in which some of the Hindu deilies were aliegedly shown in
objectionable position. Accordingly, | went to my New Delhi office and in order to
conduct a sting operation, | took spy-cameras and also got prepared an identity
card in the assumed name of Piyush Agarwal of Deihi Universily. Thereafier on
16-5-2007, | came to Baroda and stayed at a holel in Alkapuri. Since, no one
was known {o me al Baroda, | got reference of one Shri Niraj Jain. an advocate
by profession and who was an office bearer of VHP & BJP and contacted him. |
toid Shri Niraj Jain that t was a research scholar and wanted to make some
research about the dispute that had arisen in Baroda over a pamnting and
collected some delails from him. During my talks with Shri Niraj Jain. ! could get
the information that one Shri Dhimant Bhatt, Chief Auditor of M.S University.
Baroda was an office bearer of VHP and could provide useful information
relating to the incident. Accordingly, | contacted Shri Dhimant Bhatt over his
mobile phone and obtained his office address located at the end of Shastn
Bridge and situated al the second floor at the office of Management studies
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faculty of the MS University. | visiled Shri Dhimant Bhatt at his office and
discussed !he Issue relallng to disputed painting controversy. During the talks
the issuse relating to the 2002 riots also cropped up and ! callected some details
of the same from Shri Bhatt. Shri Bhatt during our talks claimed himself to be a
pant of the conspiracy halched in a Sangh Parivar meeting convened in Baroda
after the Godhra train burning incident. He also claimed that a decision was
taken to carry out riots in Muslim localities of Baroda. Thereafier, | spoke {o Shri
Tarun Tejpal, Editor in Chief at Delhi office and informed him that Dhimant Bhait
was discussing about his role in the 2002 riots without any inhibilions and that it
was essential 1o conduct a fresh inquiry Into the said issue, to which he agreed. |
met Shri Dhimant Bhatt again and discussed the Gujaral riols issue with him.
Shri Bhatt gave me the mobile number 9825030424 of a person who known as
Shri Kumar, P.A. to Shri Purshottam Rupala, a tughly placed office bearer of BJP
and aiso the two mobile numbers 9427306044 and 9824092698 of one Shri
Virendra Maniyar, P.A. to Purshottam Solanki, the then sitting Minister in Gujarat
Governmertt and advice me to meet Shri Damleji, a RSS activist in Hedgevar
Bhavan, Ahmedabad, Shri Jaydeep Palel, a VHP leader in the office of VHP at
Ahmedabad and Shri Haresh Bhat!, MLA of Godhra and assured that they would
be in a posilion to provide a lol of information on the subject. | spoke to Shr

Virendra Maniyar over the phone who gave me more nanies and telephone
numbers.

Thereafter, t visited Ahmedabad and met Shri Damleji at Hedgevar
Bhavan. | taiked to him about Hinduism for about 10-15 minutes and asked
about the details of the riois. Shri Damleji informed me that the VHP had played
a lead role in the riots and that | should meet Shri Jaydeep Palel, a VHP leader
to talk on the subject. Accordingly, | visiled the office of VHP siualed at Paldi
and met Shri Jaydeep Palel. | apprised him with the purpose of my wisit and
further stated that 1 was concucling research on a subject by the name of
‘Revival of Hinduism Post 2002 Gujarat ricts. Stri Jaydeep Patel nformed me
that he was facing allegations about his own involvement in Maroda massacre
and that he was not in a position 10 comment upon the same. On being probed
further by me he admitted that many Muslims were massacred in Naroda patiya
and Maroda Gam because VHP had a very strong organizauonal slructure and
support base in this area. | tried to discuss the various other issues with him but
he avoided and instead advised me to meet Shri Arvind Pandya, an advocate
(Mob. 9825035000} and Shri Maresh Bhatt (Mob. 9426001148), MLA irom
Godhra, Shri Jaydeep Patel also rang up Shri Arvind Pandya. Advocate and
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infroduced me to him, | spoke to Shri Haresh Bhalt over his mabile phone who
gave me his local address as Flal no. 402, Shivalaya Apit, Nehrunagar,
Ahmedabad and asked to come to his residence. | may add here that all along
my tour in Guijarat | had travelled by auto rickshaw within the city limits to avoid
my exposure. | met Shri Haresh Bhatt, the then MLA from Godhra at his
residence. During the first 30-40 minutes, we discussed general issues relating
to Hindu ideoiogy and vaguely referred to riots. However, | continued to bring
him to the riots issug and the role played by the different individuals to which he
informed me that he had a crackers faclory at Ahmedabad where he
manufaciured bombs and other weapons and distributed the same to the VHP
cadre. It may be added here that | had been recording my talks with different
people at different places with the help of a button camera and also used spy-
cam occasionally. | again met Shri Haresh Bhatt on 1-6-2007 in the morning and
taiked to him in detailed about the riots. On being asked by me about the
reaction of Shri Narendra Modi, the Gujarat Chief Minister, about the Godhra
incldent, Shri Haresh Bhatt informed thal the same was favourable towards the
saffron activists and the rioters. Shri Bhatt further informed me that he can not
make a detailed statement but whai Shn Narendra Modi did. no Chief Minister
could have ever done. Shn Bhatt furiher eiaborated that Shri Narendra Modi had
given rioters three days to do whatever they could. Shri Bhatt also stated that
Shrl Narendra Modi said openly that he would not give us time after that.
According to Shri Bhatt, after three days Shri Modi asked them to stop and
eveiything came to a halt. It may be clarified here that this matter related to the
riots that had erupted on 28-2-2002 and had been in full swing in different parts
of Gujarat for three days. The conversation recorded by me has been proguced
today in the form of CD and the exact transcription of the same is enclosed. It
may also be mentloned that the relevant porlion of the said conversation has
been reproduced at page 52 of the Tehelka magazine issue of 3-11-2007. |
identify my voice as well as that of Shri Haresh Bhalt in the said recordings.

On 1-6-2007, | went to Mumbai and returned to Ahmedabad on 6-6-07. On
6-6-07 1 visited the residence of Shri Arvind Pandya in the night. Shri Arvind
Pandya talked to me about riots in general. However, during the talks Shri
Pandya specifically said that the ‘ruler’ was strong in nature and said that he
would take the revenge. Shri Arvind Pandya also said that Shn Narendra Modi
came and gave oral instructions to the police to remain with the Hindus because
that entire kingdom was with the Hindus. The conversation recorded by me is
produced today in a DVD. | identity my voice as well as that of Shri Arvind
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Pandya who had directly spoken to me. The extracts from the said recordings
were published al page §3 of the Tehelka magazine In its issue of 3-11-2007.
The exact transcript of the said recording is also enclosed.

On 8-6-2007, | again met Shri Arvind Pandya at his residence. During the
talks about the firsi reaction of Shri Narendra Modf, CM on Godhra incident on
27-2-2002, Shri Arvind Pandya informed that when Shri Narendra Modi heard it
over the phone, his blood was boiling; hls reaction was such that if he would not
have been a Minister, he would have burst bombs in Juhapura, a Muslim
dominated locality in Ahrﬁedabad, During the talks Shn Arvind Pandya also
mentioned that he had previously threalened a police officer namely Shri
R.B.Sreekumar to not speak against the gnvernment but it had leaked out and
was broadcast on TV but eventually nothing bappened against Shri Pandya. This
conversation was also recorded by me and produced today n the form of DVD. |
identity my voice as well as that of Shri Arvind Pandya who had directly spoken
to me. The extracts from the said recordings were published at page 53 of the
Tehelka magazine in its issue of 3-11-2007 The exact transcript of the said
recording is also enclosed.

On 8-6-2007, | met Shri Rajendra Vyas, the then VHP Anmedabad Chief
at the latter's residence In the evening. During my talks with Shri Vyas, | wanted
1o know about the first word uttered by Shri Narendra Modi after the Godhra train
Incident Shri Vyas informed me that Shri Narendra Modi first said that they would
take revenge and everything will be taken care of. Shri Vyas explained that by
these wsords all those who were present there gol the message. Shn Vyas also
said that they were given a free run to whatever they wanted that the police was
with them as well as the entire Hindu samaj. 1 identify my voice as weli as that of
Shri Rajendra Vyas who had directly spoken to me, The extracts from the said
recordings were published at page 42& 53 of the Tehelka magazine in its issue
of 3-11-2007. The exact transcript of the said recording is also enclosed.

On 12-6-2007, | met Shri Ramesh Dave at his residence and taiked to him
about the riots. On being asked about the first reaclion of Shri Narendra Modi
after the Godhra incident Shri Ramesh Dave informed me that Shri Narendra
Modl gave a very slrong statement at Godhra as being with the Sangh Parivar
since childhood, Modi was enraged at the incident. Shri Dave also informed that
Shri Narendra Mod! did not come out in the open but the police machinery was
turned totally ineffective. | identify my voice as well as that of Shri Ramesh Dave
who had direclly spoken to me. The extracts from the said recordings were

-~
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published at page 51 of the Tehelka magazine in its issue of 3-11-2007. The
exact transcript of the said recording 1s also enclosed.

Qn 10-8-2007, 1 met Babu Bajrangi, a Bajrang Dal activist in his office near
Galaxy cinema at Naroda, Ahmedabad. During the discussions about the rlots
Shri Babu Bajrangi informed me that he had a telephonic conversation with
Police Inspector Mysorwala at about 2:30 hrs on the day of incident ta which
Mysorwala had advised him nol to come to the Police Station as there were
shoot at site orders against him and asked him to run away Babu Bajrangi
further informed that Shri Narendrabhai (Narendra Modi, CM} had told me afler
four months that there was jot of pressure on him and advised him (Babu
Bajrani). | agreed to his suggestion and surrendered near Gandhinagar when a
big drama was enacted by Shri P.P. Pande, the then Joint CP in which a few
cars were checked on Blloda(Chiloda)-Gandhinagar road as a public show and
he was shown arrested or otherwise the media and NGOs’ would have ripped
him apart. | idenlify my voice as well as that of Shn Babu Bajrangi who had
directly spoken to me. The extracts from the said recordings were published at
page 41 of the Tehelka magazine in its issue of 3-11-2007. The exact transcript
of the said recording is also enclosed.

I had another meeting with Shri Babu Bajrangi on 1-8-2007 at Pritampura,
Delhi at the residence of Shri Amrit Tejpal uncle of Shri Tarun Tejpal, Editor in
Chief, Teheika. It may be mentioned here ihat in order lo extract more
information from Babu Bajrangi and also to inspire confidence in him, | had
posed myself as a RSS worker. Further, in order 10 have a meeting at Delhi and
to impress upon him that the family had a RSS background, Shri Amrit Tejpal
uncle of Shri Tarun Tejpal, Editor in Chief, Tehelka stepped in and a meeting
was arranged at his residence in which he was introduced as ‘Anandj’, a
{ictitious RSS leader and a few photographs of the prominent RSS ieaders had
been hanged on the walls. On this occasion, during the talks Shri Babu Bajrangi
informed that nobody can do what Narendrabha) {Shri Narendra Modi, CM) had
gone In Gujaral and if he did not have Narendrabhai’s support, they would not
have been able to avenge Godhra because the police was standing right in front
of the riolers and was witnessing ail that was happening but had shut their eyes
and mouths. He further said thal, at that time had the police wanted they would
naver had let them in, as there was just one entry to the Patiya locality. He also
mentioned that if police wanted to stop ihey could have easily done so since they
were 50 in number. But the rioters had good support from the police because of
the Narendrabhai and that is because whatever happened in Gujarat, happened

Qﬂi\w(\.\\ W\uﬁauia



46

R 3 i

- -

92

for {he best. In this meeting Babu Bajrangi clearly said that he spoke {o Gordhan
Zadaphia In the evening of 28.02.2002 and told him everything hat had
happened. Babu Bajrangi also said tha! Gordhan Zadaphia, the then MoS, Home
advised him to leave Gujarat and go into hiding. On being asked by Babu
Bajrangi as to what he meanl, Gordhan Zadaphia lold him to run away and not to
mention it 1o anyone, anywhers that they had talked about the matter. | identify
my voice as well as that of Shri Babu Bajrangi who had directly spoken to me.
The extracts from the said recordings were published al page 41 & 13 of the
Tehelka magazine in its issue of 3-11-2007. The exact transcript of the said
recording is also enclosed. '

In September, 2007 the operation was wound up. During my meetings
with different BJP, RSS, VHP and Bajrang Dal activists. | had used spy cameras
for audio, video recording and spy-cam. After the recordings, | had deposited all
the footage and the laptop on which ihe foolage was being transferred and
slored during the operation. The origlnal video footage, spy-cam and also the
hard disk of the laptop used in the operation were seized by the CBI. Il may be
mentioned here that at the end of the day 1 used to transfer the video footage
from the memory chip on to the iapiop at hotel in the night and the laplop,
camera, chip etc. were finally deposited at the office of Tehelka at Delh

Read over and admitted to be correct.

AM@N ’Rl § Before me

1
27 OS “7 {A.KPamar)
Police Sub Inspector
Special Investigation Team
Gangdhinagar
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1. Tehelka Tape Transcripts at Annexure 1] File XIlI, D-129 of the SIT Papers

2. NHRC Directive Ordering CBI to Authenticate Tehelka Tapes @ Serial Nos
44, Pages 133-136 of the Annexure Volume | of the Protest Petition

3. CBI Authentication Report, @ Annexure lll, File XV, D-157 of the SIT
Papers o

4. Statement of Ashish Khetan, Special Correspondent, Tehelka dated
27.08.09 at Serial Nos 15 at Pages 87-92, Annexure |, Volume | of the SIT
Papers

EXCERPTS FROM THE NARODA PATIYA JUDGEMENT DATED 29.8.2012
AUTHENTICATING THE TEHELKA TAPES AND TREATING THEM AS RELIABLE
CORROBORATIVE EVIDENCE

Pages 750-791

CHAPTER -ll: STING OPERATION

In this case, 15 DVDs and 5 CDs have been produced on record, which were recorded
by PW 322, while taking interview of different persons including the three accused of this case

in the Sting Operation shot by him.

(&)} Appreciation of DVD & CD :

15 DVDs were shot, from which 5 CDs were prepared selecling certain parts to telecast
on ‘Aajtak’ news channel under the name ‘Operation Kalank’. The DVDs were shot in a 'Sting

Operation’ by Tehelka.

A DVD or CD, to a certain extent, is at par with a document, but for its capacity to store
even the visual images apart from the sound it can, for certain purposes, be treated as real
evidence and can have more evidentiary value than a mere document. When treated as real
evidence, it can be a strong piece of evidence by viewing of which the Court can form its own

opinion on the facts in issue or on the relevant facts.

{a) In the case, the CD or DVDs have been properly and satisfactory proved. The PW 322
who recorded the interview and who had done the shooting in question, has been

examined as a prosecution witness

{b) The prosecuting agency has obtained the certificates from FSL about its genuineness.
The scientist from FSL Jaipur, PW 323, has been examined for the purpose. No
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reasonable doubt is created against the genuineness of the CD and the DVD and hence
the same have been proved to be beyond reasonable doubt and is an admissible

evidence.

There is no challenge to the evidence, that what the CD and DVD contains is what was
shot at the place of interview or not. It is only challenged with respect to the fact that the
same was done under some inducement and in the alternative, the accused No.18
whose interview has been recorded, was merely reading the scripts given to him and
that too, the defence has only been taken vis-a-vis A-18 and for the other two accused
viz. A-21 and A-22 who are seen and heard being interviewed in the DVDs and in the

CDs, have not been defended on any ground.

For A-21 and A-22, the evidence of CD and DVD has remained unchallenged and
uncontroverted.

It may be observed here that though it is an admitted position that certain part has been
taken by ‘Aaj-Tak’ in the CDs made from DVD, but merely that would not create any
doubt on the admissibility and relevancy of the CD or DVD as the evidence is what is

seen and heard when it is played.

The DVDs of the interviews recorded by PW 322 were viewed by this Court as one of the
CD was certified to have become corrupt at this stage and that in search of truth and to
examine the genuineness of the defence raised, it was necessary to view the concerned
DVDs to notice the gestures of A-18. It was essential to ascerfain as to whether the A-18
was reading a script or was interviewed and that, was he under any inducement or not?
The judgement at Sr.No.79 produced by the defence is of Hon'ble Punjab & Haryana
High Court. This Judgement is relied upon to submit that the extra-judicial confession is
a weak piece of evidence and should not be believed. {n the facts of the case, page 6
which has been highlighted, reflects the facts of the cited case where the person whose
extra-judicial confession was on record, was under the influence of liquer and the same
was the outcome of the consumption of liquor, but in the case at hands, the defence has
neither submitted nor it is the case of the defence that duning the sting operation any of
the accused was under the influence of liquor.

In the very same Judgement, ali those sentences which have been highlighted by the
defence, are indeed based on the facts of the case and that there is discussion that the
extra-judicial confession was not finding any corroboration from any other evidence. But
in the instant case, the corroboration is available from the oral evidence of PW 322
Mr.Khetan, PW 323 and the evidences of other prosecution witnesses and even

documentary evidence on record.

In another highlighted paragraph, the discussion of the extra-judicial confession is

related to the facts of another case, which does not exist in the case on the hand.



N

o

143

{0

)

(2)

85

Hence, this judgement would not be applicable to the case on the hand, the facts being
different.

Section 17 of The Indian Evidence Act provides that an admission means a statement,
may be contents in electronic form, which suggests any inference as to any fact in issue
or relevant fact.

Section 22A helps the PW as it is provided that “When oral admissions as to
contents of electronic record are relevant, oral admission in electronic contents are

relevant if the genuineness of the electronic record is produced. Here, by a certificate of
F.S.L., genuineness has been proved.

RELEVANT CITATIONS :

Il is propounded principle that if the extra-judicial confession passes the test of

credibility, it can be basic for conviction also. The Judgements discuss hereinbelow highlight the

principle.

(i) AIR 2011 SUPREME COURT 2283
“Sk. Yusuf v. State of West Bengal”

Itis held that to act upon extrajudicial confession it must be established to be true
and made voluntarily in fit state of mind -Words of witness to whom extra judicial
confession was made must be clear, unambiguous and clearly convey that accused is
perpetrator of crime - Extra judicial confession can be basis of conviction if it passes test

of credibility.

(if) AIR 2011 SUPREME COURT 1777

" Kulvinder Singh v. State of Haryana"

(B) Evidence Act (1 of 1872), 5.25 -CONFESSION -POLICE OFFICERS -
Extrajudicial confession -Reliability -Accused had gone to Ex-Sarpanch of village and
disclosed that they had committed murder of deceased and he should take them to
police -Ex-Sarpanch took them to police who arrested them on same date -It is not
defence version that they had been arrested earlier -Neither accused have challenged
deposition of ex-sarpanch that he did not produce them before police, nor it is their case
that they had been arrested from somewhere else -Ex-Sarpanch faced grueling cross-
examination but defence could not elucidate anything to discredit him -Deposition of Ex-
Sarpanch in respect of extrajudicial confession made to him by accused, is trustworthy
piece of evidence. (Para 9)

(iii)) Learned Special Public Prosecutor through citation at Sr.No.22, has submilted
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that it is held by Hon'ble The Supreme Court that corroboration for each and every piece
of information mentioned in extra judicial confession, is not necessary. It can and will

have the corroboration in general. It is held to be sufficient corroboration.

(iv)  As has been held at Sr.N0.23 of the list of learned Public Prosecutor, the extra-
judicial confession was voluntary, not out of threat, inducement or promise in terms of
provisions of Section 24 of the Indian Evidence Act. The confession was corroborated by
material on record was held to be proper.

) The judgement at Sr.N0.24 is to the effect that “no-doubt in law the confession of
co-accused cannot be treated as substantive to convict other than the maker of it on
evidentiary value of it alone, but, it has been often reiterated that if on the basis of the
consideration of other evidence on record, the Court is inclined to accept the other
evidence, but not prepared to act on such evidence alone, confession of co-accused can
be pressed into service to fortify itself to act on it alone.

(vi) At Sr.No.29 in para-29 it has been observed that, "..... no-doubt the extra-
judicial confession is held to be of weak type of evidence. But, even extra-judicial
confession can be made a basis to convict an accused without any corroboration. This
proposition of law had been laid down in the case of State of U.P. Vs. M.K. Anthony,
AIR 1985, Supreme Court, 48 : (1985) Cri.L.J., 493); which reads as follows:

“There is neither any rule of law nor of prudence that evidence fumished by extra
Jjudicial confession cannot be relied upon unfess corroborated by some other credible
evidence. The Courts have considered the evidence of extra-judicial confession a weak
piece of evidence. If the evidence is about exira-judicial confession comes from the
mouth of wilness/witnesses who appear to be unbiased, not even remotely inimical to
the accused, and in respect of whom nothing is brought out which may tend to indicate
that he may have a motive for attributing an untruthful statement to the accused; the
words spoken to by the wilness are clear, unambiquous and unmistakably convey that
the accused is the perpetrator of the crime and nothing is omitted by the witness which
may militate against it, then after subjecting the evidence of the witness to a rigorous test
on the touchstone of credibility, if it passes the lest, the extra-judicial confession can be
accepled and can be the basis of a conviction. in such a situation to go in search of
corroboration itself tends to case a shadow of doubt over the evidence. If the evidence of
extra-judicial confession is reliable, trustworthy and beyond reproach the same can be

relied upon and a conviction carr be founded thereon.”

(vii) As against the above submissions of the learned Public Prosecutor, learned
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advocate for the defence has also produced the citation at Sr.No.62 to submit that the
extra-judicial confession was not truthful and waé part of hallucination with which the
prosecution and its witnesses were suffering. It needs a very special note that these are
the facts of the case at 8r.No.62 but then in the case on the hand no such case has
been submitted either by suggestions in the cross-examination or by leading oral
evidence or even by submitting any documentary evidence that the witnesses or the

accused were suffering from hallucination.

According to the meaning given in Oxford Dictionary, hallucination means
“detusion, illusion, figment of imagination, etc". In the cited judgement, hallucination was
held to have been suffered by the prosecution witnesses. In the instant case that is not
the case. As far as accused is concemed, as already discussed herein above, defence
has been raised qua the sting operation only for A-18 and that too defence is raised of
PW-322 to have induced A-18 and / or A-18 was given a script who was reading the
script, both of which have been dealt with in detail. Hence, the repetition has been
avoided. Suffice it to say hear that the ground of hallucination is not applicable either to
the PW or to A-18, 21 or A-22. Even A-21 and A-22 have not at all raised any defence
qua the sting operation either through the cross-examination or while their further
statement was recorded. In light of the above discussed facts, the judgement cited by

the defence at Sr.No.62 has no application in the facts of the case.

{viii) Another judgement has been cited by the defence at Sr.No.73 wherein the accused
had made the statement when he was under the influence of liquor and he was passing
by the side of a magical superstitious act, it was held in that fact of the case that, such

statements cannot be stated to be truthful and made while in complete senses.

In the case on the hand this situation, as has been discussed herein above in the
cited judgement at Sr.No. 73, is not at all applicable and that it is nobody's case that the
accused were under the influence of liquor or were not in complete senses when their
extra-judicial confession was being recorded. That being the situation, even this

judgement does not come to the rescue of the accused.

(3TO B} IN GENERAL FROM FACTS AND OPINION:

The Sting Operation carried on A-18, A-21 and A-22 has revealed that the

offences were continued for the entire day and that what can be inferred from the conversation
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of the three accused is, along with three accused, there were A-2, A-20, A-37, A-41 and A-44 as
well. Though for A-2, A-20, A-37, A-41 and A-44 these conversation solely cannot be the
foundation to bring home their guilt, but it can be used as corroboration after marshaling all the
evidence against the accused, which is capable to provide corroboration to any kind of evidence
against the accused. In this Sting Operation, it is stated that A-37 has visited the site of the

offence in the morning as well as in the evening on the date.

(3.1) A-18 and A-22 have revealed that they hated the Muslims too much and are very
much interested in doing away the Muslims. Even A-18 had collected about 23 firearms on the
previous might as preparation for massacre. They are absolutely unable to give any explanation
as to for what reason, they came to Muslim locality and remained there for an entire day of the

occurrence.

{3.2) This makes it abundantly clear that A-18 has made notable preparation for the
massacre to terrorize Muslims, to take revenge of the Godhra incident of the previous day, to do
away Muslims in more numbers than the death toll at Godhra Railway (S-6) Carnage. A-18

seems to be very much committed and determined to do horrifying massacre at Naroda Patiya.

{4) The submission of A-18 that what has been recorded in DVD and CD by PW 322
is not genuinely recorded, but is a created recording by PW 322 as A-18 was induced by him to
read the script given by PW 322 and what is presented at recorded conversation is, in fact,

created.

(5) As mentioned above, this Court has viewed the relevant part of DVD and CD to
test the defence raised. Almost all interviews of A-18 were recorded at his personal office where
there were his men around, it was his area and the PW 322 has visited as guest. During every
episode of the interviews, everything apparently seems to have been done voluntarily. The talks
of A-18 with eye contact is not possible if one is merely reading the script. A-18 talks about
many things including, his social activities (according to him) of saving Hindu women from
Muslim men who were joined with wedlock. A-18 also talks about his firm conviction and his
severe disliking and opposition for Muslims and Christians, quoting them as two of his enemies.
During the interview, A-18 was silting on the main revolving chair in the room in a very resting
posture, who talks with all vigour and the entire talk looks very natural. A-18 also taiks about
numerous police cases having been filed against him and that he draws the map of Naroda
Patiya and explains to PW 322 as to how on the date of the incident, Muslims were cordoned,
surrounded and how race murders were committed. From his talk, violence sounds to be
extremely common and routine activity of his life. His association with V.H.P. and Bajrang Dal,
according to him, is of 22 years. During the interview, he attends the phone calls, he responds
to a caller stating that a reporter from Delhi is sitting in front of him and that even while telling
this, nothing looks like he was reading any script. He was not even remotely appearing to have
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been talking under some inducement. He was absolutely free and talking voluntarily. There was
no element of any compulsion on his talk. His conservation was very natural. The relevant VCD
are No.1, 4, 9, 11, 12 and 14. The gist of the entire conversation recorded in the VCD have
been attempted to put in the capsule form herein below which is accused wise.

(6) In the opinion of this Court, extrajudicial confession in this case possesses a high
probative value as it emanates from the person who commits a crime, which is free from every
doubt. PW-322 before whom the confession was given by A-18, 21 and 22 is an independent
and disinteresled witness who bore no eminence against any of the accused. This extra judiciat
confession, in case of all the three accused is relevant and admissible in law under Sec.24 of
the Indian Evidence Act. Law does not require that the evidence of an extra judicial confession
should in all cases be corroborated. In the instant case, PW-322 is not a person in
Governmental authority or in any manner an authority. There is no ambiguity in the version
given. As emerges on record, more particularly from the oral evidence of PW-322 he has
developed cordial relationship with the accused. Not oniy that, but he has also established link
with the accused creating the base of institutional organization and he has projected himself to
be a dedicated worker of Hindu Organization. The Hindutva in the three accused has been
linked by PW-322 with his identity which he has assumed for the purpose of recording the sting
operation. It is this identity and cordial refationship has created tremendous high level of faith
and confidence in the mind of the accused where they felt that PW-322 is their own person and
their interest 1s same. The extra judicial confession of all the three accused does not lack
plausibility and inspires confidence of the Court. This Court is therefore, of the opinion that,
though extra judicial confession in the very nature of things a weak piece of evidence, but, in the
instant case, in a very peculiar facts and circumstances, this exlra judicial confession needs
absolutely no corroboration. It stands proved with the substantial evidence of PW-322, the C.D.,
V.C.D. and the oral evidence of F.S L. scientist, etc. Hence, this extra judicial confession
considering the foregoing discussion on its own merits is found very dependable, reliable,
having the contents fuil of probability and that it is absolutely found safe to convict the accused

on this extra judicial confession.

{7) Summary of C.D., D.V.D., Exh.2259 and from the deposition of PW-322

(a) Exh.2259 is the excerpts of the CDs and DVDs sent to F.S.L., Jaipur for its scientific
examination, This has been prepared by F.S L., Jaipur.

{b) PW-322 is the person who has nterviewed and recorded the Sting Operation of the
three accused viz. A-18, A-21 and A 22. PW 322 has also reproduced the gist of the
conversation he had with the three -A-18, A-21 and A-22 in his testimony. At para-30 {o 46, the
conversation is with A-18, para-48 is the conversation with A-21, para-49 to 50 is the
conversation with A-22, para-51 and 53 is the conversation with A-21 and A-22 and para-54 to
57 is the conversation with A-22. The gist of the conversation is testified by the PW 322, which
is part of the substantial evidence before this Court.
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() ABSTRACT OF THE CONVERSATION OF PW 322 WITH A-18, A-21, A-22
WHICH HAS BEEN TESTIFIED BY PW 322 :

{(c-1) Para-30 to 46 of the testimony of PW 322 is from the Interview of A-21 by PW-322.

(c-2) Para-48 of the testimony of PW 322 is from the Interview of A-21 by PW-322.
(c-3) Para-49 and 50 of the testimony of PW 322 is from the interview of A-22 by PW-322.

(c-4) Para-51 and 53 of the testimony of PW 322 are from the combined interview of A-21 and
A-22 taken by PW-322.

(c-5) Para-54 to 57 of the testimony of PW-322 are from the interview of A-22 (mainly) and
some part of interview of A-21 taken by PW-322.

(8) To satisfy the judicial conscience, this Court also thought it fit to view the muddamal
DVDs as one of the CD was certified to have become corrupt. This Court has also viewed the
relevant DVDs and CDs and more particularly the parts concerning the three accused. It is
observed by this Court that PW 322 through his testimony before this Court has testified certain
glimpses of the entire conversation. While the DVDs were viewed, foliowing points have been
found worth producing on record which is again the gist and substance of the conversation in
the words of the three accused. The summary of which is as under :

9) From_ the interview recorded by PW 322 with A-18 (D.V.D.) :

PW-322 has also deposed that the interview of A-18 was recorded in the office of Babu

Bajrangi near Galaxy Cinema. The gist of the revelation of A-18 is as under:

« Once we were in V.H.P., now in Shiv Sena; we (saying for Hindus) are not feeble -
minded people (Kadi, Khichadiwale nahi hai).

« The abdomen of the pregnant woman was slit with the sword, a large number of people
were done away at Naroda Patiya by him. They were charged by fanaticism, They have
slaughtered the Muslims, they killed them. Ravan’s Lanka was destroyed. Hinduism is
within them.

« They were equipped with sword, bombs. Petrol bombs were flung.

» “The moment | was noticed by the police, they immediately realized that now it would all
be over (Meaning thereby police was afraid of him). Had | not been in Naroda, nobody
would have dared to come out.

3149
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23 revolvers were collected at night. (talks for intervening night of 27/02/2002 and
28/02/2002). | shall not stop working for Hinduism until | die. | have personal notions
about Hinduism. | have no fear even if | am hanged.

The CHHARA fribe has long been indulged into stealing. They are powerful enough to
overcome the Muslims. Now, there won't live any Muslims in India. The moment | saw
corpses lying in Godhra, that very night | had decided and chailenged that, ‘There would
be four times more sltaughter in PATIYA than that of GODHRA.'

| have two enemies, the Muslims and the Christians. | had been to Godhra. | have pretty

geod rapport with the police agency.

There were 80 to 90 dead bodies lying in Naroda Patiya, which were burnt to ashes with
kerosene. They used to kill whoever came in their hand, they used to attack from all the
sides.

I am accused of murdering many people. The Chharas were with me. We went to
Godhra where at night, | had challenged saying. “they will face the consequences
tomorrow”. My name is enough to bewilder the Muslims.

Mayaben (A-37) had arrived at the Patiya at 04'00 p.m.

If I am hanged, my last wish is to get two days' leave to blow all Muslims with grenades. |
have too much hatred for Muslims. 1 would incite rioters to start ravaging their (Muslim’s)
buildings and properties.

Bipin Panchal (A-44) and Manoj Videowala (A-41) were there. That day, it was
Haldighati battle fought vigorously.

We were besieged. It was decided to slash them whosoever comes out. | had killed a lot
of Muslims. The Chharas have slaughtered them.

Mayaben kept wondering throughout the day in a car. | was a leader that day. We
slaughtered Muslims, Patiya is half kilometer away from my house. { and the local public
were there to do the massacre at Patiya. If one would go to Godhara, one would be
provoked and would determine to kill all the Muslims then and there. We retaliated at
Patiya. In Patiya, we had secured the highest death toll. Naroda village is at distance of

half kilometer only.

| would go to Juhapura and slit S00 Muslims by the evening. 1 would resort to shelling if
Hinduism — so demands. They {Muslims) started dying after we reached there. One
cannot withstand the sight of Godhra massacre and might fee! the urge to retaliate. One
would feel of taking revenge then and there.
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« 1 had gathered a team of 29 to 30 volunteers at night ilself (talking about the intervening
night of 27 and 28) and collected 23 revolvers on the previous night. it was the befitting
response.

»  We and the Chharas executed the Patiya carnage. Not a single shop was spared in
Naroda Patiya — Everything was burnt to ashes. The Muslims were slaughtered. We
used their gas cylinders lying in their houses.

» A pig was tied over the mosque. A tanker full of diesel was smashed into Nurani and the
tanker was dashed with the mosque. We could dash into mosque and all was set afire
under our leadership.

+ At night, we got free petrol from the petrol pump. Then the massacre followed and
everything was set ablaze. Any Muslim who dares to speak against me can no longer
remain or reside in Patiya. The firearms were secretly placed elsewhere. | even did not

use my licensed revolver.

+ The Muslims were dazed with our valour. The men, women even the children were st
and burnt to death. Some Muslims could escape saying Jay Shri Ram and Jay Mataji.
The carnage had occurred just behind the S.R.P. On return from Patiya massacre, we
felt very elevated as if we were ‘King Pratap. There were 50 -60 Policemen. We were co-

operated by Police.”

The above are the abstract of the interview of A-18. This Court is to discuss the
depositions of the victims at Part-5 of this Judgement. It is sufficient to mention here that the
record of 'C-Summary' brought from the Court of Learned Metropolitan Magistrate, has a
complaint at Exh.1776/22. it has been discussed in the chapter of R&P of C-Summaries that
Exh.1776/22 is strong supporling circumstance on the part of the truthfulness of extra-judicial
confession of siitting a stomach of Muslim pregnant woman which is noticed to be truthful while
appreciating the evidence. As such, extra-judicial confession itself is sufficient and satisfactory
evidence to convince this Court that A-18 has slit stomach of pregnant woman. Nobody has
heard or seen the Muslim woman mentioned in complaint Exh.1776/22 or that Muslim woman to
have survived till the date, which is beyond seven years. Hence, question does not anse to
doubt on happening of the occusrence. It is therefore, inferred by the Court that the said Muslim

pregnant woman died on that day of riot.

In fact, in the case at the hand, there is charge of slitting the stomach, of pregnant
Kausharbanu, by A-18. It was forcefully submitted that the story of Kausharbanu is the
development after the Sting Operation and s entirely fabricated. No such incident has
happened. Exh.1776/22 is not tried and proved fact but it indicates that such occurrence was
complained of right in 2002 even before Sting Operation. The other evidences are to be
discussed at an appropriate part of the Judgement.
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From the interview recorded by PW 322 with A-21:

One word from Babu Bajrangi (A-18) and there would be crowds thronging. The entire
Chhara Nagar would be out at his single call (for A-18). Babu Bajrangi is the lion —
incarnated of the Hindus. Even today, we would just blindly follow Babu Bajrangi.

Bursted many gas cylinders, but the mosque was not much shaken. Firstly, they dashed
into the Muslim chawl, second time also, 12 Muslims were killed."

Tiniyo Marathi (A-55) was there. Mayaben (A-37) was there where the occurrence took
place. She said, "Kill, them. | am and will be with you always. You will always have my
backing.” Mayaben was there for 30-45 minutes.” He was in riotous activities. Used

baton, stick, sword and trident. Had weapons which they had used on that day of riots.

“A-22 has all kinds of weapons except revolver. Guddu Chhara was very bold, he also
killed many Muslims. His owe was too much. Suresh (A-22), Guddu (dead), Naresh (A-
1) were not tired. They did very well.

| had cut off hands and legs of many. | was not going inside (Muslim chawl). All other
Chharas went inside. | was outside and who ever was coming out | was beating that
person and made him turned back inside the chawl where other Chharas were there.
Bipin Panchal (A-44) came along with his team men at the Muslim Chawl. They all went
inside. Since Hindus were killed. they also needed to be taught lesson. Suresh (A-22)
has strong enmity with the Muslims, he has kept a Muslim woman (as mistress of A-22)
in tussle with some Muslim. in fact, he was to marry with the elder sister of this woman
but only before a day of that marriage, he ran away with this woman. He ate, slept
everything with the elder sister of this woman. After this, Muslim did not do anything
because Muslims are afraid of Suresh (A-22); even certain policemen are also afraid of
Suresh.

Mayaben assured us, “/ am with you." Babu Bajrangi is our God. we will obey his orders.
Mayaben said, “I will always be with you and stand by you.” Babu Bajrangi would secure
release of anyone from the police custody with only one phone call. Babubhai (Ref. A-
18) had arranged from within the Jail for Rs.1000/= to be paid to each of their family at
their doorstep.

Vishwa Hindu Parishad was known by the name of Babu Bajrangi (A-18). Tiniyo Marathi
(A-55) was also there, a Nepali and another Marathi were also there. Mayaben delivered

a speech there (at Patiya).”

From the interview recorded by PW 322 with A-22:

«  “Manoj (A-41), Mayaben (A-37), Kishan Korani {A-20), Bhavani (dead), Babu
Bajrangi (A-18) were the main leaders who were present there. Kishan (A-20)
and Manoj (A-41), are closed aide of Mayaben (A-37). They are left and right
hands of Mayaben.
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Truck loads of weapons, pouches of water and snacks were brought in. Gas
cylinders were used in the occurrence. We were helped (talks with reference to
fiscal help) by Babu Bajrangi (A-18) only. Pipes, batons were taken from our
home. | had participated in riots. | had no repentance for whatever | had done.

Had Chharas not been there, then this RSS, VHP and Shivsena people could not
have done to death the Muslims on that day. Mayaben was there at the site on
the date of occurrence for the whole day up to 8 p.m., in her car taking round and

on every round, she was telling us "You are doing proper deed, go ahead.”

After torching started, certain Muslims were killed and were thrown inside (in
Muslim Chawl). Some Muslims were hidden in gutter. They closed the lid of
gutter and put heavy brick on it. Dead bodies were found from there. The riot
continued upto 8.30 p.m., because of doing stone peiting, giving knife blow,
giving pipe blow, etc. we were tired. | was inside (Muslim Chawl).

Mayaben was taking round in her car for whole day. Mayaben was teliing
“Continue, doing all these deeds, | am at your back". She wore white saree and
put on saffron belt. We were doing slogan shouting and had saffron bend. We
were throwing gas cylinder. | had killed one sleeping pig by giving spear blow.
We tied that pig on mosque and unfurled the saffron flag. We had broken
minarets of mosque. Some 8-10 boys did all these. Even we dashed tanker with
the mosque, by taking it in reverse direction often. That tanker was of a Muslim.
QOne of them brought it taking away from Muslim. We could damage mosque with
this tanker. The tanker was of kerosene or petrol. After sprinkling kerosene and
petrol like fire brigade sprinkles water, we had burnt Muslim Chawl. We had
broken the wall of mosque by reversing the tanker often. Some were also killed
there. The Chawls were set ablaze using petrol.”

Rape was commitied by 2-4 of them. About 2000 of Chhara went inside the
Musltim Chawl, some drunkard or hungry men might have committed rape. If
fruits (saying for girls) were lying, the hungry would eat it. In any case, she (the
Musiim girl) was to be burnt, hence somebody might have ate the fruit.

*2 to 4 rapes or may be more, might have been committed. Who would not eat
fruit ? In whatever number Muslims are Killed, it is still less. | would not leave
them. | have too much of rancor {malice) against them (Muslims). Even | had
also raped one girl, who was daughter of a scrap man (one who is in business of
scrap) -named Nasimo, she was fat. | raped her on roof and then thrown her from

there. | smashed her, cut her to pieces like "achar’ {pickle).”

He speaks in interview to explain PW 322 what kind of pain he gave to parents "If

3133
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our child is thrown in fire by him and if we see him thereafter our heart would
bum." Hence after the occurrence, being secured, they(Muslims) said “here is
that langada who had thrown my child in fire."

+ {On that day), Muslim did Tilak of blood, said Jai Shree Ram and saved
themselves on that day but some of them were known to him (A-22), | had killed

them. Mayaben told police that, "do not do anything today."

* According to PW-322, Sajan, the nephew of Ganpat (A-4) was silting there with
Suresh who told that 'had our tribe chhara been not there to help, the success of
this riot was not possible'.

« No one has done as much as the Chharas have done. They (Muslims) had
settled for sixty to seventy years — in Naroda Patiya. They were rescued by
S.R.P. In 19889 riots.

OPINION :

(12) The above are abstract of the interview of A-22. If depositions of several eyewitnesses
like PW 158 are appreciated, if the deposition of victim of gang rape, Zarinabanu (PW 205 and
wife of PW 158) is perused, if deposition of PW 142 is perused and while noting that the extra-
judicial confession of A-22 to have raped a Muslim girl named Nasimo, it becomes doubtless
that the occurrence of rape has also taken place at the site of the offence and on the date of the
occurrence. The probability of outraging the modesty of Muslim women is also on record.

(13) The interview of some of the victims have also been found recorded in the DVD wherein
also they have named some of the accused who have played lead role.

(14) CD and DVD are video and audio document wherein voice as well as gestures have
been recorded. Since vide Exh. 2259, the F.S.L. Report is on record, which certifies that the CD
and DVD produced are genuine, not tampered with and not got up in any manner, this certificate
makes the DVD and CD admissible in evidence. It is relevant since it contains the details about
the incident and the interviews taken of A-18, A-21, A-22 and of other persons concerned with
the crime by PW 322.

(15) The CD which is prepared from the VCD has also been certified by FSL for its
genuineness and not having been tampered with. Hence the genuineness and even the
evidentiary value of the said cassettes have not been affected

As discussed, the cassette and VCD are not merely a document, but it is more akin to
real evidence. Hence the Court can take cognizance of what is seen and heard in this DVD and
VCD.
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{16) ltis very much on record, no new facts, not initially forming part of the case is now put
up by the prosecution. PW 322 has prepared a script of three interviews which was given to the
defence and those scripts are also produced on record by PW 322. PW 322 has kept these
scripts in his hand and he has testified some of the parts of it. Even the copy of the CD has also

been given to the defence.

(a) Moreover, the 15 DVD from which CDs were prepared were in fact on record and
cerlified copy, prepared from Gujarat FSL were made part of record of muddamal of this case.
In fact, SIT ought to have done that. The point here is

that, sufficient fair and reasonable opportunities were given to the defence and even PW 322
was aiso extensively cross-examined by the defence. Putting the defence of A-21 and A-22, it
can only be stated that in fact, their conversation has not been offered any substantial challenge
at all and that the conversation placed on record by PW 322 and proved to be genuine by the
scientist of FSL, Jaipur have all remained uncontroverted and unchallenged. Unsuccessful
attempts have been made to put defence of A-18 qua the conversation which all has been
discussed hereinbelow.

(b) Since the accused have information right from the beginning as to what they have
revealed in their interviews and that the accused also have been given full opportunity to know
the contents of the CD and DVD and even the PW who has recorded the CD and DVD has also
testified on conversation who was also extensively crossed by the defence, no doubt
whatsoever is created against the prosecution case put up through this CD and DVD and the
oral evidence of PW 322 and other concerned witnesses.

{c) At para-13, hereinbelow the appreciation of evidence of PW 322 has been done at

length hence that topic need not be discussed over here.
(17) PW 314, Exh.2213 to 2216 :-

(a) PW 314 was the then Director of All India Radio/ Akashwani, Ahmedabad. He received
Exh.2213, a request of SIT to take voice sample of A-18, 21 and 22. He undertook necessary
correspondence with SIT vide Exh.2213 after receiving sanction of the competent authority to
record the voice sample, the recording was done.

Exh.2215 and 2216 are orders of Director General, Prasar Bharati, New Delhi,
granting permission for voice sample recording. This witness through his staff. did record the
voice sample of all the three and has also collected necessary documents to confirm the identity
of the accused, necessary formalilies like certificate, sealing the CD and giving it to SIT, the

panchnama was drawn for it which is at Exh.2203.
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(b}  CROSS EXAMINATION OF PW 314 :-

PW 314 was cross examined on many aspects, but none of the aspect is such, the
revelation of which has created any doubt in the mind of the Court about the official act done by
the PW 314 through his officers to have been irregularly performed. At the cost of repetition, this
being official act, is presumed 1o have been done in accordance with drawn procedure, rules
and regulations The sample voice recording of A-18, A-21 and A-22 has been proved to have

been done quite properly beyond reasconable doubt.

(c) FINDING OF PW 314 :

Hence, it is held that through this PW the prosecution has proved beyond reasonable
doubt that the voice samples of A-18. A-21 and A-22 has been recorded absolutely in
accordance with law and proper procedure was adopted for the same. No doubt is created on

proprietary of that act.

(18) PW 320, Exh.2258 and 2259.

(a) During 2002 to 20089, this witness was at C.B.1., Bombay who received the order to carry
out preliminary inquiry registered on account of the order of National Human Rights
Commission. The inquiry was to the effect that in News Channel known as ‘Aaj-Tak', operation
‘Kalank’ was telecast on 25/10/2007 in which programme, CD and DVD were used and that by
carrying out the inquiry, the genuineness or truthfulness of those CD and DVD were to be

examined.

{b) The witness did carry out the inquiry, recorded necessary statements like that of reporter
of Tehelka, Shri Ashish Khetan (PW 322) as from Tehelka, the news Channel known as 'Aaj-
Tak' has purchased the CD and DVD.

(c) According to PW 322, Shri Khetan, has prepared 15 DVD of the 'Sting Operation’ (done
on different persons including the three accused herein). It is from this DVD, 5 CD of the 'Sting
Operation’ were made. The witness has also interrogated A-18, A-21 and A-22; he has also
seized camera, recorder, laptop, hard disk etc. and has sent all the muddamal to FSL, Jaipur
(Rajasthan) to scientifically decide its genuineness. The FSL has given the report that these are
genuine DVD and CD wherein no tampering has been done.

d) The statement of the scientific officers of FSL were also recorded and ultimately, a report
was given to N.H.R.C. by the C.B.1. The witness has kept DVDs and CDs from the muddamal
and other muddamals were returned to Tehelka. The witness has then handed over those DVDs
and CDs to the representative of SIT.
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(e} The correspondence of the witness to FSL, Jaipur is Exh. 2258 along with parcels. The
receipt, the opinion, the script made out of DVD and CD sent to FSL etc., from page No.1 to
138, viz. Exh.2258 were received by this witness from FSL, Jaipur.

PW 320 wrote Exh.2258 to FSL, Jaipur with request to examine the exhibit, to opine
about its authenticity, opine as to, is there any editing or tampering in the 15 DVDs or not,
whether there was shooting by the muddamal instrument, are the § CDs the excerpts of
recording of the Sting Operation and whether any addition was made in the 5 CDs of Operation

Katank or not. The parcels were sealed and sent.

(f) Exh.2259 is receipt to have received the muddamal sent by the FSL, Jaipur; report
admissible under Section 293 of Cr.P.C. from FSL; Jaipur — result of the examination which
were favourable for all the questions, certifying the credibility, the genuineness and authenticity
of recording DVD, CD which were found without any tampering. The speech, utterances,
laughter, body language of the persons appearing in the recorded event were matching with
video signals.

The script of the glimpses of the interview of PW 322 with A-18 and A-22 have been in
wiitten script in the document in Hindi which is of programme ‘Operation Kalank® telecast in Aaj-
Tak.

(89) CROSS-EXAMINATION OF PW 320 :

During the course of the cross-examination, the questions related to proprietary of the
procedure were raised, but in light of Section 114 (lllustration-e) it is presumed that the acts
have been regularly performed which is not found rebutted by the defence. All other questions

are not material since the witness was only to decide the genuineness of CD and DVD.

An important aspect is clear when paragraph 31 of the testimony is read wherein the
witness has stated that the persons including A-18, A-21 and A-22 have stated before this
witness that the persons shown in the 'Sting Operation’ are they themselves. The fact that the
witness has admitted that A-18 has told before him that in the ‘Sting Operation’, he was given a

script and the voice in the "Sting Operation' is of him and that A-18 spoke according to the script.

(h) FINDING OF PW 320 :

Through this witness and Exh.2258 and 2258, it is clear that this witness has obtained

the opinion of FSL about the genuineness of DVD and CD, about the fact that it has not been
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tampered with and that the recorded voice are that of the three accused. No doubt is raised
about the genuineness and proprietary of the recording, the concerned recording in the voice of

the three accused and CD and DVD are without any tampering whatsoever.

(19) PW322, Exh.2273:

(a) The witness was employed at Tehelka in 2007 at which point of time he had an
assignment for which he was in Gujarat. Thereafter he was assigned the task to investigate
about the communal riots of 2002. The witness was therefore at Ahmedabad where he met
different persons of R.S.S., V.H.P. etc. He was given lot of information about the communal riots
of 2002 and about Hindutva. It was also informed to him that the strongest organization of
V.H.P. is in the Naroda area because of which the massacre at Naroda Patiya could take place.
Having learnt the telephone numbers of different persons connected with V.H.P. he telephoned

people, he also met many persons by inter-se references.

(b) The witness met A-18 on 14/06/2007, where he was called upon at the office of A-18.
The witness introduced himself as a Research Scholar on the subject of Hinduism. The witness
has transcript about the conversation with all the three accused and he has recorded ali his
meetings with the three accused with spy camera, and diary camera which he then used to save

those talk in his faptop.

(c) The witness has produced transcript of the recording of the meetings and interviews of
all the three accused.

The witness has aiso reproduced line to line the important aspects according o him of
the conversation he had with the three accused. The witness identifies all the three accused
with whom he had conversation, whom he had interviewed and on whom he did the ‘Sting
Operation'. All the muddamals including the ear phone, micro chip, battery, tape recorder, both
the cameras used for the 'Sting Operation' were produced before the Court. This Court has
seen all these muddamals produced here. The copies prepared by F.S.L. on D.V.D. & C.D.
have been retained in the record of this case.

(d) CROSS-EXAMINATION OF PW 322 :

(d-1) During the course of the cross-examination, nothing has been elicited which
attacked the very heart of the entire prosecution case related to the ‘Sting Operation'. On the
contrary, it stands confirmed that the 'Sting Operation' was done by this witness, which was for
50 hours or for more than that. The appointment letter of the witness was sought during the
cross-examination which was then produced by the witness on demand of the defence, which is
on record at Exh.2273, which confirms the case of the prosecution about the ‘Sting Operation’

having been done by the witness while he was employed with Tehelka. This proves that the PW
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has not acted with any personal malice for the accused but, has acted as 'PRESS'.

(d-2) The witness has specified and clarified that he has duty to report for the truth
which is in the public interest and in lhe interest of justice. He adds that all that has been

recorded is truth. This fact is also supported by the FSL opinion and deposition of PW 323.

(d-3) The witness was crossed on the fact that he assumed a false idenlity by
introducing himself as Shri Piyush Agrawal and thus with the help of falsehood, he has done the

'Sting Operation'.

In the opinion of this Count, this is the age of aggressive and investigative
journalism and the pivotal point of central importance is not the fake identity assumed by the
witness, but it is whether the 'Sting Operation’ of the three accused and others was done and

whether can it be termed to be voluntary, truthful and reliable or not.

(d-4) As has already been discussed about the gestures and place of the 'Sting
Operation’, it was residence of A-22 at Chhara Nagar for A-21 and for A-18, it was his own office
near Galaxy Cinema. There does not seem any compulsion, mistake, misrepresentation or
inducement or undue influence applied on anyone of the three accused. They spoke voluntarily.
It absolutely seems to be voluntary and it is quite truthful, reliable and dependable. No element
has been noticed because of which it can even be doubted that it was not voluntary. 1t is clear,
unambigucus revelation made in fit state of mind. It seems to have been recorded while the
accused were free from any element which can create a doubt against its voluntariness,
complete free involvement of three accused is too apparent. No doubt is created whatsoever
about this central point of consideration for this Court. There is absolutely no contradiction to
have highlighted and all the omissions are not material and relevant as well as nothing is related

to the three accused of this case.

(d-5) The gist of the revelations by all the three accused in the DVD and CD has been
placed in capsule form in the beginning of this topic. Even the relevant part of testimony of PW
322 involving the three accused has also been highlighted herein above, hence the same has
been not repeated here. Suffice it to say here that all the three accused gave their interview
quite voluntarily and there was no element of either inducement or any other such hindering

elements.
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{d-6) It is also notable that the defence only qua A-18 only has been raised stating that
A-18 was reading the script in employment of lhe inducement offered by PW 322 but this
defence is found to be totally baseless defence when this Court has viewed the 15 DVDs and
the 4 CDs {concerned part for this case). This Court found that A-18 was in full mood to tell ail
his horrifying deeds on the date of riot. At the cost of repetition, it is to be noted that this Court
keenly observed that throughout his interview, he had eye contact with this PW and not even

once he was seen to have been reading and then speaking.

(d-7) As far as A-21 and A-22 are concerned, no defence by way of any suggestion
has been put forth for them. Hence for them, the 'Sting Operation' and the admissions made
therein have remained unchallenged and uncontroverted. The 'Sting Operation' of the remaining
two is held to be voluntary and absolutely reliable and deemed to have been admitted during the

trial.

(d-B) As far as the revelations are concerned, it clearly involves A-18, A-21 and A-22
as they themselves admit by way of the extra-judicial confession before PW 322 about iheir
involvement in the crime of Naroda Patiya massacre. The confession by the three accused is
found to be most dependable, clear, unambiguous and is very clearly conveying that the three
accused and the co-accused are perpetrators of charged crimes. it passes with distinction the

test of credibility.

(d-9) Moreover, the extra-judicial confession made by the three accused before PW
322 is absolutely clear, cogent and appeared to have been made in normal course without any
pressure, inducement etc. and sounds to be absolutely voluntary and reliable. Hence the said
extra-judicial confession cannot be discarded and should be given due importance which itself
can be the basis of conviction as laid down in AIR 2011 SC 2283. Here, it needs a note that A-
18, 21 and 22 are makers of the confession hence, they stand on different footing than, the co-

accused to whom also they involve.

(d-10) Pw 322 has no malafide and if the DVDs and CDs viewed, he has not prompted or
induced any of the accused to confess but, the accused themselves in their natural free flow,
have entered into conversation with PW 322 who has not played any other role except to nod
his head by expression of one or two words. The confession made by the accused was certainly
not for any threat or promise given by PW 322 as it is also not because of any inducement.
Hence the extra-judicial confession made by the three accused before PW 322 is most relevant

evidence and needs to be considered in a right perspective, keeping in mind the facts and
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circumstances of the case.

(d-11) By the submission of the defence, this Court is called upon {o just ignore the DVD and

CD which would be clearly impermissible.

A-18 has throughout the revelation, expressed his then clear intention to damage
and destroy properties of Muslims and to do away Musfims four times more in numbers than the
death toll in Godhra Carnage. He has revealed that when he saw Hindu dead bodies at Godhra,
there itself he had given challenge on the previous day viz. 27/02/2002 that he would raise the
death toll of Muslims at Naroda which would be four times more than at Godhra. He has further
stated in the DVD that he has collected 23 firearms during the night. He has aiso said that his
enemies are only two and that is Muslims and Christians. The conversation also reveals that A-
37 came at morning, even at 04:00 p.m., there were A-44, A-41 etc. and that he himself has

collected the team of 29 to 30 persons on the previous night.

(d-12) The 'Sting Operation' of A-21 is also interesting wherein he reveals that A-18 is lion of
Hindus and on his call, entire Chhara Nagar would come out. He states that A-55 was there, A-
22 was there, A-18 was there, A-37 has instigated and has assured that, "she is with them", A-
37 waited for half and hour to 45 minutes, there was Nepali and another Marathi (both the

absconding accused) etc.

(d-13} The interview of A-22 is also quite interesting wherein he makes the confession of
having committed rape on a Muslim girl named as Nasimo. A-22 has revealed that more than 2
to 4 rapes must have been committed on that day. He states to have a sense of vengeance on

seeing any Muslim. He makes revelation that there were A-16, A-4, Savan Didawala and A-37.

(d-14) As has been held in the judgement reported at AIR 1968 Supreme Court 147 in
the matter of Yousafalli Esmail Nagree v. State of Maharashtra while holding that the tape
record was an admissible evidence, it must be proved beyond reasonable doubt that the record
was not tampered with. In the instant case, the doubt of tampering has absolutely been ruled
out by obtaining the certificate of FSL to the effect that the DVD and the CDs produced are not

tampered with and are genuine.

This is the age of technology. One cannot shut one's eyes to hard reality that use
of technology is very common these days and that when there is even picture along with voice it

becomes more reliable as it is said that voice may be manipulated on the Audio Tape but it is
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technically nearly impossible to manipulate the picture without getting noticed. In the wake of
L.T. Act. the electronic magnetic tape devices can be termed as valid documentary evidence and
that when there is no reason to disbelleve the VCD and CD produced on record, the same

become most reliable.

(e) EFFECTS OF THE EXTRA-JUDICIAL CONFESSION OF THE THREE
ACCUSED.
(e-1) Sec.30 of the Indian Evidence Act needs to be held to be in operation in this case

as, Its ingredients stand satisfied in the facts of the case. The base of Sec.30 is when an
accused makes a confession implicating himself that may suggest that the maker of the
confession is speaking the truth. It is not likely that the maker of the confessional statement
would implicate himself untruly. This is not a weak type of evidence against the maker himself.
A-18, 21 and 22 are themselves makers of the confession. Hence, the Court needs to consider

the said confession.

As and when it comes to be applied in case of co-accused it is essential to first of
all marshal the evidence already emerging against the said accused and that if, the conscience
of the Court is satisfied of having sufficient evidence, then, if the accused are tried jointly as are
being tried in this case, the confession of the co-accused can certainly be called into aid.

(e-2) The trial is being jointly held against all the 61 accused and that all of them are
being tried for ihe same offence. By way of confession, the three accused have proved

presence, involvement and parlicipation of the many other accused as mentioned herein above.

In light of Section 30 of the Indian Evidence Act, since the proved confession is
also affecting certain co-accused, the said confession can be taken into consideration even for
the co-accused who have been referred as discussed above by the three accused who have

made the confession.

(e-3) This Court is canscious that the confession of the co-accused is not a substantial
evidence against the co-accused, but it can certainly be used fo fortify the prosecution case, if
other evidence is available on record. Therefore, il is held that if any other evidence is available
against A-1, A-4, A-37, A-41, A-44 and A-55 and deceased Guddu, then, the confession can
very well be used against the accused. As has already been discussed while discussing issue
No.1 that there is cogent, credible and positive evidence against A-37, A-41, A-44 and A-55, A-
18, A-22 to have hatched conspiracy and to have executed or got it executed through co-

accused (for A-37), for the charged offences of race murders etc. The evidence of extra-judicial
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confession is therefore, held to be corroborating the case of having hatched the criminal
conspiracy against all these co-accused. It is quite useful to remember an important part of the
Judgement of Hon'ble Apex Court for application of

$.30 of Indian Evidence Act in th'e cited judgment. It is reported at 2002 Law Suit (SC) 826
pronounced in the matter of Mohd. Khalid v. State of West Bengal, which has been

discussed in Chapter-1 of this part.

(e-4) In light of Section 10, it is important that anything said or done by anyone of the
conspirator with reference to their common intention after such intention was first entertained by
anyone of them is a relevant fact against each of the persons believed to have conspired and it

is also for proving the existence of conspiracy.

(e-5) The fact said by A-18 as challenge at Godhra of rising the death toll four times
more is obviously after the intention to take revenge with Muslims, hence, this is relevant fact
and that was with reference to the common intention. Moreover, as has already been narrated
above while noting the gist of the DVD and CD and his act of making the team of many persons
at night and collecting 23 revolvers, are all clearly proving the existence of conspiracy and to
have hatched the conspiracy and it was then after executed by the accused mentioned in

discussion of issue No.1 under the leadership of A-37.

(e-6) Thus, the finding of having hatched the conspiracy, of existence of the
conspiracy at that point of lime and on that day, and about the execution of the conspiracy is

clearly and strongly fortified by the above points.
(f) FINDING OF PW 322 :

(f-1) Itis therefore, held that A-18, A-21 and A-22 have made extra-judicial confession

before PW 322 which has been'pr'd\féd'by PW 322 and which can be viewed in CDs and DVDs,

which is most reliable and the Court can safely depend on the same.

(f-2) From the revelation of all the three accused, they also involve, proved presence
and participation of many other accused in the crime through their extra-judicial confession.
These accused are A-37, A4, A-16, A-55, A-41, A-44, Marathi (not ascertained the exact name

of Marathi since in all the three lists viz. live, dead and absconding accused, there are in atl four
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to five Marathis who are charged with the offence) and Nepali (absconding accused). If any
other reliable evidence against these accused would be held to be available on the record then
the extra-judicial confession of the co-accused, A-18, A-21, A-22 can be used to fortify the

prosecution case against them.

(20) PW 312, Exh.- 2201 to 2203 :

PW-312 is an unarmed Head Constable of Navrangpura Police Station, who was
PSO then, who had issued the Muddamal receipt for the C.D. received of the sample voice
recording of the three accused. The order from PW-327, which he received to carry out the task
is at Exh.2201 whereas the Muddamal Pavti is at Exh.-2202. This C.D. of voice sample wherein
the sample voice of A-18, A-21 and A-22 were recorded. was seized by drawing a Panchnama

on 07/04/2010 which was sealed there. This Panchnama is on record vide Exh. 2203.

In the opinion of this Courl, the wilness and three documents very clearly
eslablished proprietary and regularity of the official act done by PW-327 of collecting the C.D.

containing sample voice of the three Accused.
(21) PW 323 - Exh.2275, 2276, 2277 (DEFENCE):

(21.1) This witness is a scientist from F.S.L., Jaipur. Along with Dr.Vishwas Bhardwaj
and Dr.Mukesh Sharma, this witness has examined all the muddamal sent to the F.S.L., Jalpur
by the C.B.l. and given the opinion about the recording, C.D., D.V.D., etc. to be genuine and
without any tempering. Exh.2275 is a receipt of the C.D. of the voice sample of the three
accused. Exh.2276 is the opinion of this scientist o the effect that the conversation of the three
accused recorded in C.D. and D.V.D. are of the three accused respectively, as is confirmed
upon comparison of the voice and similarity in frequency, intonation pattern, phonetic. etc. with
the voice sample C.D. it has been opined that the speakers respectively A-18, A-21 and A-22

are the same whose interviews have been recorded.

C{(212) Defence has sought Exh.2277, which was a letter by PW-327 to the F.SL.,

Jaipur with a request to give report comparing lhe voice recorded in sting operation and

recorded in the C.D. of voice sample.

(213) During the course of the cross-examination, nothing has been focused and or
proved which can create any doubt in the mind of the Court about the genuineness of the

opinion given by F.S.L., Jaipur.
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(21.4) The witness also confirmed the opinion having been given for the C.D. and
D.V.D. on record vide Exh.2258.
(21.5) It is also clear that Sec.10 of the Indian Evidence Act is based on principle of

‘Agency’, hence, thing said, done or written while the conspiracy was on-going, is all receivable
in evidence and that in the case what A-18, A-21 and A-22 have talked was of before the
conspiracy was halched and during the execulion of the conspiracy and there is nothing on
record brought by the three accused after the conspiracy was ceased hence, Sec.10 is
applicable. As a resuit, the statement made, anything said or done, etc. shall be admissible

against another conspirator.

(22) FINAL FINDING ON STING OPERATION :

While concluding this toptic, following points emerged on screen very
clear.
{(a) The extrajudicial confession of A-18, A-21 and A-22 is held to have been proved
voluntary, free from every doubt and it passes test of credibility thoroughly. As such, no
corroboratton Is required to the extrajudicial confession of the kind but, since there are ample
corroborations available from the record of the case, the same needs to be recorded here as,
finding of the Court.

Oral evidence of PW-312, 314, 320, 322 and 323 r/w. documentary evidence at
EXH.2201 to 2203, 2258, 2259, 2213 to 2216, 2273, etc. further viewing it with 15 D.V.Ds. shot
by PW-322 and further hearing it from 5 C.Ds. of operation 'Katank' it is clear and confirm that
the extrajudicial confessions can safely be acted upon qua the three accused which are held to
be relevant, admissible and safe to convict the three accused on this confession also.

{b) In the facts of the case on hand, the extrajudicial confession given by A-18, A-21 and A-
22 have been held to be truthful, voluntary and a genuine confession which is held to be
admissible and relevant, free from every doubt and is safe to act upon.

That against the non-maker co-accused, who are being jointly tried with the three
accused, whose confessions have been held to be safe to be acted upon, also it cannot be
treated as evidence but, if from the evidence otherwise available against the co-accused, which
can be marshaled from the record of the case and then, from that if the co-accused are found
connected with the crime, then the extra judicial confession has corroborative value. These co-
accused are A-1, A-4, A-16, A-20, A-37, A-41, A44, A-55 and others. At the cost of repetition,
be it noted that if the evidence on record is found to be capable enough to point their guilt, then
only, the confession of the co-accused viz. of A-18, A-21 and A-22 can be used to corroborate

the finding of this Court against the said ¢co-accused.

X..X..
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